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DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

(Fol I owi ng proceedi ngs were had in open court on Novenber
18t h, 2003.)
(Def endant LeCroy present.)

THE COURT: Good norning, please be seated.

MR. VI NEYARD: Good norni ng, Your Honor.

THE COURT: We're starting with United States versus
WIlliamEmett LeCroy, nunber 2:03-CR-038. There is an issue
that needs to be discussed; we will then nove on to the
pretrial conference in number 2:03-052, which is also the
United States versus Wl liamEmett LeCroy, and then, we will
take up sone further matters in number 2:03-CR-038.

So let ne first ask counsel to identify thensel ves
for the record.

MR. VI NEYARD: Russell Vineyard on behalf of the
United States, Your Honor, and M. Burby will be joining ne
shortly.

THE COURT: Al right.

MR, KISH. Judge, Paul Kish and Stephani e Kearns and
Bri an Mendel sohn on behalf of M. LeCroy. W' re hoping that
M. Summer will be able to show up later this norning.

THE COURT: Good norning. And let the record reflect
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that M. LeCroy is seated next to his counsel.
Al right. | understand that in connection with the
Daubert hearings that we are going to begin today in case

nunber 2:02-CR-038 that there is a question that has arisen

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

about one of the governnent's witnesses and, if you woul d,
explain what the question is, M. Vineyard.

MR. VI NEYARD: Yes, Your Honor, thank you.

Your Honor, the governnent intends to call three
wi t nesses for the Daubert hearings that we begin today. The
first would be M. Art Anthony with the GBI. He is the
forensi c document exam ner who actually exani ned the notes that
are in question in this case and he is here to testify
begi nni ng this norni ng, Your Honor.

We had al so planned and we still do plan to call
Dr. Moshe Kamon Friday. He is a statistician who has done
sone research in this area and he is planning to be here
Fri day.

We had al so planned to call Robert Ml eberger as a
third witness. M. Mileberger is the head of the U S. Postal
I nspection Service forensic docunent | ab.

M. Ml eberger called me on Friday afternoon to |et
me know that he has a conflict that has arisen; the only day

that he was available this week was today, and we have made
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tentative arrangenents, if necessary, to interrupt
M. Anthony's testinmony to put M. Mil eberger on this afternoon
so that he could get back to other matters in Washington.

On Friday afternoon, he informed ne that his services
were required in another investigation and he had proposed

havi ng anot her forensic docunent examiner in his office, in his

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

lab, | should say, that is M. Singer Jackson, a subordinate of
his in his lab, to be available to testify in his stead.

Now, M. Ml eberger did not exanmi ne the docunents in
this case; he is sinply an expert in the field of forensic
docunent exami nation. He actually testified in the Kirby case,
whi ch was a case we brought to the Court's attention in a
simlar situation, and that's why we selected M. Ml eberger in
the first place.

Yesterday, | notified M. Kish and provided hima
copy of the CV and |'ve provided the Court a copy of M.
Jackson's CV, showing her qualifications. And, Your Honor, we
woul d propose to have Ms. Jackson testify instead of
M. Ml eberger; she is available to fly down from Washi ngt on
today, and the reason | asked to bring this matter up the first
thing this norning is whatever the Court's decision is on this

matter, we will convey that to Ms. Jackson and either she wll
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fly down and be avail able either later this afternoon and/or
first thing in the norning.

You know, | woul d propose perhaps taking her direct
testinmony this afternoon if we conmplete M. Anthony's and that
woul d al |l ow t he defense to have until tonmorrow to prepare for
Cross- exam nati on.

THE COURT: Is M. Mileberger still available this
af ternoon?

MR. VINEYARD: He is not, Your Honor

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

THE COURT: He is conpletely unavail abl e?

MR VI NEYARD: Unavail able this afternoon, so the
other alternative -- and he is unavailable for the rest of the
week -- so the only alternative would be to have to reschedul e
sonething with himat a later date

And there is nothing unique, as | said, about M.

Mul eberger's testinony; he is sinply an expert, a forensic
docunent exam ner, and one who can testify about and can
address sone of the Daubert issues, and | believe after
speaking with Ms. Jackson, that she is also conmpetent to do
t hat .

And this is not a situation -- | guess |I could see

there being nore of an objection if we were trying to
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substitute M. Mil eberger for Ms. Jackson. M. Mil eberger, as
the head of the |lab, has a nunber of nobre publications than M.
Jackson does. Ms. Jackson's CV represents that she has one
published article that really doesn't relate to the issue that
she woul d be testifying about here, it relates to -- ink
deposit pattern is her article.

And | say that because if we were trying to
substitute M. Mil eberger, who has a number of other articles,
| think there could be an argument, well, we can't prepare to
cross-exam ne M. Ml eberger because we haven't had tine to
review all of his articles, and that's just not the case with

Ms. Jackson.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

And | would ask the Court to allow us to call Ms.
Jackson, given the time constraints that we have in this
matter. As a matter of courtesy, | have told the defense who
our witnesses are; | don't think that we're necessarily
required to do that, but | certainly did so, and up until
Friday afternoon, we had planned to present M. Ml eberger
today. And so | would ask the Court to allow us to substitute
Ms. Jackson, unless there is sone showi ng of real extrene
prejudice to the defendant and that other arrangenents m ght

have to be made.
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THE COURT: Al right. M. Kish?

MR, KISH: Yes, ma'am thank you.

Just as M. Vineyard shared his witnesses with us, we
shared our witnesses with the government many nonths ago on
this issue, and we are still prepared to call those sane
Wi t nesses.

The government did informus a while ago, indeed, as
M. Vineyard just nentioned, that M. Ml eberger would be one
of the three w tnesses upon whomthey would rely, and then
about 26 hours ago -- and again, | understand that schedul es
change -- that's when M. Vineyard had the opportunity the
first time to let us know that they would be calling a
di fferent witness.

W obj ect, but not for the sane reasons | think that

M. Vineyard nentioned. | think his point was, well, it would

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

be different if they were trying to sneak Mul eberger in after
we prepared for this other person who has |ess of a history.
Vell, it's alittle bit -- it reminds me of some of the
jockeying for position that sonetinmes happens when a person is
nom nated for the United States Suprene Court and sone ot her
hi gh positions: There is a |look at the paper trail of that

per son.
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cross-exam ne M. Ml eberger

And that's what we have done;

we were prepared to

He has testified previously; we

put a lot of work into |l ooking into his background and the

t hi ngs t hat
spoken about and the areas that

expertise in in this field.

he has published before,

But we're not

anyt hi ng regarding this new w tness,

it's not appropriate at this tine.

t he areas that

prepared to do

he has

he has shown an interest and

and that's why we think

Again, | don't at all fault the government for making
this attenpt, because, | nean, schedul es change and
understand that, but | just think under the circunstances here,

it would not

wi tness at the |ast stage,

under stand the circunstances.

ei t her way,

ot her than the point that we were not

our W tnesses are,

M. Ml eberger at all

posi tion.

so we do object,

THE COURT: Does either side have any authority

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor,

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O fici al

There is no requirenent,

and if we had el ected just

ot her than just argunents of fairness?

be appropriate to allow themto substitute this

al t hough we do

| don't have any authority

required to disclose who

Court Reporter

don't think,

not to cal

t he def ense woul d be in the sanme

t hat we
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notify themin advance of who our witnesses will be; we did so
out of courtesy to the defense, and we have accommopdat ed one of
their witnesses, Dr. Kam-- |I'msorry, Dr. Saks, who's not
available to cone here to testify, and we have made
arrangenents, | believe, to take his testinmony, | believe, on
Decenber 5th.

THE COURT: And that will be done by tele --

MR. VI NEYARD: Vi deo tel econferencing.

THE COURT: Vi deo-tel econference?

kay. That's on Decenber 5th?

MR VI NEYARD: Yes, Your Honor, that's what we've
agreed to, subject to -- M. Kish, correct ne, Decenber 5th?

MR, KISH: Decenber 5th is what we have tentatively
arranged. But as Ms. Kearns reminds me, the Court had
previously ordered both sides pursuant not only to Rule 16 but
al so pursuant to Rule 704 to exchange identities of, the
backgrounds for and the bases of the opinions by any experts
that would be called in these cases.

So agai n, although we have been sharing them 1 don't
think it's quite accurate to say that we were not obligated to

do so, because | believe you've told both sides to do that

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

bef ore.
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MR VINEYARD: | don't believe that's correct with
regard to these proceedings. | think it's certainly correct
with regard to the trial of this matter, which Rule 16 applies
to.

THE COURT: Is Dr. Ml eberger available at a later
poi nt, for exanple, through tele-videoconference?

MR, VI NEYARD: | suspect we coul d probably schedul e
another date with M. Ml eberger, but as the Court knows, we
have set aside these three days to do that and it's our desire
to nove forward with these hearings. That's why we have
proposed having Ms. Jackson, but | would suspect that between
now and December 5th, we could probably find a date that
M. Ml eberger woul d be avail abl e, perhaps, even to trave
here, if necessary.

But | think we'd | ose sone of the tine that M.
Jackson could fill and is willing to fill over the next couple
of days.

THE COURT: Al right. Well, I"'mgoing to allow you
to, allow the government to call Ms. Jackson

And let's nmove on to -- and let nme just mention one
thing with respect to that Decenber 5th video conference,
think that ny courtroom deputy had indicated that | was going
to be present at that and | do not expect to be present at

that, so | just wanted to give both sides a heads up on that.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, on that same issue, |
t hi nk we ought to put on the record whether M. LeCroy woul d
wai ve his presence for that.

| have had sone discussion with M. Kish about that
matter.

MR, KISH: And, Judge, to that effect, we have even
executed a witten waiver by M. LeCroy here this norning and
which | will obviously present to the government within a
nmonent, but | would ask that it be filed as part of his witten
wai ver .

We can state as officers of the Court that he
executed that this nmorning along with the rest of us here.

THE COURT: Al right. And that's his waiver to be
present at the Decenber 5th tel econference?

MR KISH: Yes.

M5. KEARNS: |'msorry, Judge, | didn't hear; did you
say you were or you were not going to allow Ms. Jackson to
testify?

THE COURT: | will allow Ms. Jackson to testify.

The next thing that we need to take up is the
pretrial conference in crimnal action 2:03-CR052. And I
think the first -- well, before we go through the defense
notions, is there anything that you want to address before
going into your notions, M. Kish?

MR, KISH: Ms. Kearns will be handling the pretrial
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noti ons on that case, Judge.

THE COURT: Al right. Anything fromyou, Ms.
Kearns, before we go through the notions?

M5. KEARNS: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Al right. The first notion is the
nmotion to strike surplusage -- that's docket nunber 10 -- and
what is the governnent's position on that?

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, the defendant | believe in
the notion has proposed a stipulation and the stipulation, as |
recall, is to stipulate that he was under an indictrment for a
felony of fense. And the government woul d suggest that the nore
accurate stipulation wuld be a capital felony of fense.

And the governnment is famliar with the A d Chief
case, and | believe that we can agree to a redacting of the
indictment along with a stipulation, but I want to add to that,
t hough, the governnment strongly believes that the evidence that
M. LeCroy was under indictrment and in custody and awaiting
trial on a capital case is adm ssible in the trial of the
escape case, because it is probative of his notive for
escapi ng, and there is Eleventh Circuit case |law available to
t hat .

That doesn't necessarily address this notion, but I

wanted the record to be clear, that by agreeing to strike the
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surpl usage upon a stipulation that we're not agreeing that we

will not offer evidence at the trial that he was incarcerated

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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awaiting trial on a capital offense for which he could face the
death penalty, if convicted.

THE COURT: Ms. Kearns, is the defense willing to
stipulate to that version?

M5. KEARNS: No, Your Honor. dd Chief stands for
the proposition that the fact of the felony conviction that is
the el ement of the offense is what is relevant and that you can
avoid the prejudicial aspect of the nature of the underlying
felony and the possession of the firearmby a convicted felon.
This is no different; it's his status of being in custody for a
felony that is an element that they have to prove. It doesn't
go to motive. OAd Chief deals with the fact that you're
allowed to remove the prejudicial aspect of the other offense
fromthe consideration of the jury.

And the purpose of the stipulation is to avoid the
jury fromfinding out this information and |I'mnot sure -- the
government appears to be agreeing that they will strike the
surplusage fromthe indictrment, that that satisfies Ad Chief,
but then they can then put up evidence of what the underlying

of fense was, that's not what A d Chief says.
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THE COURT: Well, | think what the governnment was
saying is they would stipulate to striking surplusage except
that they would say that it was a capital offense

MS. KEARNS: | understood themto be saying two

things: One -- and | disagree with that -- that it's a capita

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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fel ony, the surplusage.

THE COURT: | thought you woul d.

MS. KEARNS: But secondly -- maybe | ni sunderstood
what M. Vineyard said -- | thought that even if they agreed,
even if we entered into the stipulation that it was the
government's intent to offer evidence at trial that he was in
custody pending a capital prosecution, again, the purpose of
Ad Chief is to remove the evidence fromthe jury, not just the
words fromthe indictnent but to renove that evidence fromthe
consideration of the jury, so | submt that their agreenment to
take this out of the indictnent is neaningless.

THE COURT: Well, the defense will not stipulate, is
what |'m hearing.

M5. KEARNS: No. We will stipulate to M. LeCroy
havi ng been in custody on a felony, and we take the position
that under O d Chief, that's all we're required to stipulate

to.
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THE COURT: | understand, but the governnent is not
of fering that stipulation, as | understand the governnent's
posi tion.

MR, VI NEYARD: Your Honor, our position is that we
woul d stipulate to a capital felony offense --

THE COURT: | understand.

MR, VINEYARD: -- and even if we were to agree to the

stipulation that the defendant had proposed, which is sinply a

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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felony of fense, we would still take the position that we could
of fer evidence that he was incarcerated on a capita
of fense --
THE COURT: Al right. well --
MR VI NEYARD: -- based on Eleventh Circuit
aut hority.
THE COURT: Al right. Well, there is not a neeting

of the minds here, so does the government want to brief the

noti on?

MR, VI NEYARD: Your Honor, if you think it would be
hel pful for the government to do so, we will be glad to do
t hat .

THE COURT: Well, I'mgoing to take it under

advi serment, in any case, and if you want to brief it, then, you
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can do so within ten days.

MR, VI NEYARD: Ten days, thank you, Your Honor

MS. KEARNS: May we have five days to reply, Your
Honor ?

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. KEARNS: Your Honor, and just one other thing
want to nake clear, perhaps | haven't read O d Chief correctly,
but O d Chief does not say that the parties have to agree there
is a stipulation. |f the defendant wants a stipulation, then
the Court has to accept the stipulation, and that's the preni se

we' re wor ki ng under.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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THE COURT: | haven't read O d Chief yet, so --

M5. KEARNS: Ckay. Well, we will take five days to
reply, then, Your Honor

THE COURT: Al right. The next motion is docket
nunber 11, the notion for bill of particul ars.

And, again, M. Vineyard, what is the governnment's
position?

MR. VI NEYARD: Yes, Your Honor, the governnent
opposes a motion for a bill of particulars. The defendant has
been provided substantial discovery in this case fromwhich he

can detail the particulars that he is |ooking for
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The notion references coconspirators; no
coconspirators are charged in the offense, he is the single

def endant charged in this case.

| believe froma review of the evidence that has been

provided to the defense that they can obtain the particulars
that they seek in this notion.

THE COURT: Well, what about the portion of the jai
fromwhich he is alleged to have attenpted to escape?

MR. VI NEYARD: Again, Your Honor, in the discovery,
it shows M. LeCroy was in an isolation cell at the tinme that
he put a hole in the wall and attenpted to escape fromthe
jail, so that's what the discovery shows.

THE COURT: Al right. M. Kearns?

MS. KEARNS: Your Honor, that is part of what we're

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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asking for. You know, M. LeCroy was in the Lunmpkin County
detention facility for a period of time. The discovery
i ncl udes information about an extended period of tinme and
statenments fromw tnesses that deal with the tinmes that are
totally distinct fromwhen M. LeCroy was in the isolation
cell.

Preci sely what we want to know fromthe gover nnent

is their focus and is what we're charged with attenpting to

is
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escape fromthe isolation cell where the hole in the wall was
found? And if that's the case, then, at |east, Your Honor,
submt that they should put that in witing in response to the
bill of particulars. That's what we're seeking, so that we
know that that is, in fact, what we're focused on

THE COURT: Al right. [1'Il take that under
adviserment. |I'mgoing to junp to nunber 20; that's docket
nunber 20, which was the notion for expedited trial

This, I"'mgoing to defer to the trial court judge.
will tell you, though, that he has given nme every indication
that this case is going to trial -- that nunmber 38 is going to
trial beginning February the 16th.

Now, of course, he will have to decide this notion,
but I do want to let you know that |'m under the assunption and
operating as if the case nunber 38 is going to go first.

MS. KEARNS: And, Your Honor, we want to nake it

clear that we're prepared to try this case prior to the capita

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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trial. This nmotion for expedited trial contenplates that we
woul d have to try it before February -- well, the 16th is a

hol i day, so I'massuming it's really February the 17th.
And M. Mendel sohn and | are handling the attenpted

escape case, and we will be avail able anytine between now and
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February the 17th to try it.

THE COURT: Al right. Well, but I will defer that
to Judge Story, since it's his calendar that is affected,
primarily.

Al right. This next nmotion was filed in both docket
nunmber 2:02-CR-038 and 2:03-CR-052. |It's the notion to
suppress because of unconstitutional destruction of excul patory
evi dence, docket nunber 13 in case nunber 52, and it's docket
nunber 197 in case nunber 38

The defense is asking for a hearing; it |looks to ne
as if a hearing will be necessary in this case in connection
with this notion.

M. Vineyard?

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, we would ask for the
opportunity to brief this one before deciding whether a hearing
is necessary. |It's our position that the defendant has a
burden to show at |east three things, that they cannot show
and, nunber one, have not shown before any hearing would be
necessary and, number two, we believe the evidence will show

t hey cannot show, the argument will show they cannot show,

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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nunber one, they have to show that the note, the portion of the

note that they believe was not recorded is excul patory, that it
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has excul patory val ue.

Now, they have proposed in their notion to do that
ex parte with the Court. M inquiry would be if this is
excul patory information, then why does it need to be ex parte?
If this is evidence that he contends will excul pate himfrom
the of fense of attenpting to escape, then that ought to be
evi dence that he is ready to share with everyone in open court
on that matter.

But they haven't made that show ng, nunber one,
whet her, ultimately, it's ex parte or not; nunber two, they
have to show that there is no other conparable evidence
avai |l abl e for the portion of the note that was not captured on
t he digital photograph

And, Your Honor, in the discovery that has been
provided, there is testinony fromone of the | ocal deputies
about what the portion of the note read that was not
phot ographed, so it is available through the testi nony of that
deputy.

I would propose that it is probably available by
stipulation. | suspect the parties can stipulate as to what
the portion of that note that is not captured on the digita
i mage is.

And then, finally, it is the defendant's burden to

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter

19



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

show bad faith on the part of the governnent, not the
government's burden to show good faith, and I have a coupl e of
cases fromthe Eleventh Circuit that address that, one, United
States versus Brown, which is 9 F3d, 907; another case, Rednond
versus Duger, 866 F2d, 387.

So, Your Honor, we strongly contend that, nunber one,
t he def endant has not nade a showi ng as required by the
El eventh Circuit case law. W would request an opportunity to
file a witten response to this, Your Honor, laying out in
detail our position before junping to the necessity of having
heari ngs.

THE COURT: Ms. Kearns?

MS. KEARNS: We would just |ike the opportunity to
reply to whatever they subnmit in witing.

THE COURT: Al right. You don't want to respond at
this point?

V5. KEARNS: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Al right. The government will have ten
days, and the defense will have ten days after that.

MS. KEARNS: Thank you, Your Honor

THE COURT: The next notion is a nmotion for
di scl osure of particular Brady and Gglio information relating
to jail house snitch, and it is docket nunber 14 in case nunber
2:03-CR052, and it is docket nunber 198 in case nunber

2: 02- CR-038.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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M. Vineyard, what's the governnent's position?

MR, VI NEYARD: Your Honor, there is a standing order
of course, fromthe Court regarding Brady and Gglio materi al
we certainly intend to conply with that.

We have provided to the defense any material -- |'m
noticing their notion to exclude snitch testinony on page 3,
paragraph 5, they nake reference to sonme evidence that they
al ready have about, quote, "deals."

There are not any deals, Your Honor, with any of
t hese individuals; there are requests by sone of these
i ndividuals for consideration. Perhaps that's what they are
referring to. They have that information. W certainly
understand our obligations and intend to conmply with our
obligations under Brady and G glio, so, Your Honor, | guess we
do not oppose the notion, provided it's within those
constraints.

THE COURT: Al right. Anything further, M.

Kear ns?

MS. KEARNS: Yes, specifically with sone of the
things that we did request, of course, we do know fromthe
di scovery that has been provided that sone of these fol ks have
asked for consideration and there is always the possibility
that before they testify, that there nmay be sone deals that are
entered into, so that is an ongoing request, not only for just

what we al ready obtai ned.
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Also to the extent that we have an expectation that
we're going to get sonething because of representations nade by
the agents that interviewed them |'mgoing to submt that is
also Gglio and Brady that we would be entitled to.

Al so specifically with reference to paragraph 4-G it
i s our understanding that sone fol ks were given pol ygraphs, and
if so, we would like the results, assum ng the governnent
doesn't disagree we're entitled to that information.

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, |'ve told them!| intend to
gi ve themthe pol ygraph infornmation.

THE COURT: Al right. This notion, then, will be
granted in accordance with Brady and G glio.

The next notion is docket nunber 15 in case nunber
2:02-CR-052 and it is docket 199 in 2:02-CR-038, notion in
limne to exclude jail house snitch testinony.

Does the governnent want to brief that?

MR, VI NEYARD: Your Honor, M. Burby wll address
this notion.

MR, BURBY: Good norning, Your Honor

THE COURT: Good norning.

MR, BURBY: The governnent is happy to brief it if

the Court would find that hel pful but, quite honestly, we fee
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like oral argument right now could handle it. There is not
really any authority on this point, none is cited in the

defendant's notion; what they cite is studies or research that
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this type of testinmony nmay be unreliable but there is no
judicial authority that the governnent is aware of or that the
defense has cited for the Court to exclude this testinmony.

| would be happy to address the notion right now for
the Court and don't really feel that | have nmuch nore to add in
awitten brief, but of course, if the Court would |ike that,
we can do that.

THE COURT: Well, I'mgoing to defer it to Judge
Story, | think it's really his call

MR BURBY: Okay.

THE COURT: But --

MR, BURBY: Well, then we will save our argunents for
hi mthen, | guess, Judge.
THE COURT: Right. | wanted to give you a chance to

make your show ng.

MR BURBY: W will then take the opportunity to file
sonething, if we could have ten days to file that.

THE COURT: Al right. And the defense will have ten

days to respond.
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MS. KEARNS: Your Honor, and | would like to point
out that | think there is a distinction to be nade, because it
appears that they provided us this evidence for both cases and
in one, the traditional attenpted escape trial, the standards
that apply may be different than -- not may be, | suggest are

different than the reliability of evidence that's admissible in
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t he penalty phase.

And | don't know, |'massumng that it has been
provided to us in case nunber 38 as penalty phase di scovery,
where, again, the Court | do believe has the responsibility --

MR, BURBY: It seens that Judge Story will deal with
it either way, Your Honor

THE COURT: Right, |I think that will be his call

The next notion is docket nunber 17 in case nunber
52, and it's docket nunber 202 in case nunmber 38; it's the
notion for information regarding the Lunpkin County detention
center, and M. Vineyard or M. Burby, what is the governnent's
position about that?

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, of course, to the extent
there is any Brady or Gglio material within such reports, we
understand our obligation to provide that; however, under Rule

16(a)(2), investigative reports are excepted from di scovery
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otherwi se. So our position would be, Your Honor, to the extent
there is any Brady or G glio materials, we certainly understand
our obligations to provide those.

| think we have had sonme nention, perhaps, of the
pol ygraph may be an exanple of one in which if a polygraph was
admi ni stered in the course of the investigation, we have
already said we would intend to provide that to the defense and
will provide that to the defense. But otherw se, to discover

the entire investigative file particularly when investigations
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are ongoing, to the extent they are ongoi ng, would be i nproper
and prohibited by Rule 16(a)(2).

THE COURT: Do you want to speak to that, M.
Kear ns?

MS. KEARNS: Yes, Your Honor. |'mnot sure that |
follow that distinction. The governnent is saying to the
extent it's Brady or G glio but published in an investigative
file, even though it mght be Brady or Gglio, we're not
entitled to it?

Ckay. | m sunderstood.

I understand fromreliable sources that there have
been ot her escapes fromthe Lunmpkin County Detention Center and

the details surroundi ng those escapes, | believe, are Brady and
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Gglio. And maybe not Gglio; it depends on whether or not
those witnesses are testifying. But it certainly would be
Brady that we're entitled to, and whether or not it is part of
a current investigation, the information, the underlying
i nformati on about how the escape occurred, what portion, what
parts of the facility, how the inmates were able to acconplish
it, who was involved in that is sonething that we contend is
Brady that we're entitled to.

THE COURT: Well, I'mgoing to grant the motion in
accordance with Brady and G glio.

M5. KEARNS: Your Honor, | think our dilemm is that

we don't agree on what that requires.
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THE COURT: Well, | saw M. Vineyard shaking his head
as if he did agree that anything that's Brady or G glio, even
if it's included in an investigative report, you're entitled
to.

MS. KEARNS: GCkay. And nmay we ask when we're going
to receive this?

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | wll review those files;
I would say within ten days, we can provide that, Your Honor

THE COURT: Al right.
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MR. VI NEYARD: And, again, | think the case lawis

clear that the government mekes the initial call whether it's
Brady or not, and we will be making that decision, Your Honor
THE COURT: Al right. | believe that covers the

notions that are joint notions in case nunber 52 and case
nunmber 38.

There are two notions that were fil ed yesterday

connection wth case nunber 2:02-CR-038, and the first one is a

noti on for reconsideration of order granting governnment's

in

motion for a nental exam nation of defendant; that's docket

nunber 219.

And nmy first question is does the governnent or has
t he governnent received a copy of it?

MR. BURBY: W have received a copy, Your Honor. W
just received these yesterday. | was actually out of the

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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of fice yesterday, and so we're just beginning to kind of review
t hese.

We do have, | guess, responses, particularly to the

nmotion for reconsideration, so if we could have some additiona
tine to --
THE COURT: Let nme ask you, in the notion, the

defense states that the governnent was searching for an expert
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to do a nental health examination of the defendant in the
Atl anta area, sonebody local, and is that so? Is it possible
to have M. LeCroy exam ned | ocally?

MR, BURBY: | do think there is confusion, Judge. W
have not sought out a local nental health expert to exanine the
def endant, so I'm not sure where the source of that information
is, but that's not accurate.

THE COURT: Al right.

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, if | could add, | think we
woul d |ike to know the source of that information. | nean, it
has been put forth in a pleading; if they would share it with
us in court, perhaps we could dispel any confusion about that.

THE COURT: Is it possible to have the eval uation
done |l ocally as opposed to at Butner?

MR. VINEYARD: |'msorry, Your Honor. |'ve dealt
with that side of it, Your Honor

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, VINEYARD: M. LeCroy's circunstances,
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particularly his security issues, are going to pose difficulty
wi t h conducting any kind of thorough exam nation of him |
think that's what's contenpl ated, unless we nove himto Butner

or to another facility.
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| have not specifically asked our expert about that.
The expert who we have discussed is in Butner and that's where
it is contenplated that's where these exam nati ons occur
routinely in these cases, so | can tell the Court |'ve not
specifically inquired of that but it's my understandi ng and our
experience is that it would not be feasible to do that, and
particularly given, |I think, M. LeCroy's security issues after
the attenpted escape.

THE COURT: Well, | assune that in the superior
court, these kinds of evaluations occur frequently and they
don't use Butner, and | wonder if the facilities that are used
in the state court system could be avail abl e?

MR. VINEYARD: | could certainly inquire about that,
Your Honor. | think M. LeCroy was in a state facility, of
course, when he attenpted to escape, placed there by the
mar shal s under contract, and | think there are sonme rea
concerns about placing M. LeCroy in any state facility unless
he is secured.

|"msure during the course of the trial, he may have
to be housed here locally in Hall County. But, Your Honor,

think that we would be best to |eave it as the order has been
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entered, that is, to allowhimto go to Butner for this
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eval uation. That's what was done in the | ast death penalty
case in this district, the defendant in that case was sent to
But ner for evaluation, and we woul d ask the Court to foll ow
that precedent in this case.

THE COURT: Well, | would like the government to file
a response, and |I'Ill give you ten days to respond to the notion
for reconsideration.

MR, MENDELSOHN:  Your Honor --

THE COURT: Yes?

MR, MENDELSOHN: -- I'msorry, if | could just
address two poi nts about that?

THE COURT: Certainly, yes.

MR MENDELSOHN: First of all, Your Honor, I'ma
little confused by the government's response that security
makes it inpossible for themto get a |local evaluation. |If
that were the case, the defendant woul d never be able to have
its own eval uation.

On a regular basis, in every case that involves
mental health in this district, we send private doctors into
the jail. The jails and the prisons in this district have
spaces avail able to do eval uations and do conduct these
eval uations on a regular basis. So the idea that for sone
reason, an evaluation can't be done locally for security

reasons is really -- it just doesn't hold any water, because,

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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ot herwi se, the defense counsel never could get an eval uation

As to the issue of whether or not the government has
been | ooking locally for an expert, | got a phone call from an
expert that we had had contact with about this case, who
informed me that M. Burby had spoken to her about working on
the case and al so asked for references for other |ocal doctors
who could do an eval uati on.

The expert called nme, after saying she was concerned
about whether or not she had a conflict of interest in the case
and whet her or not she could work on it, and it's ny
understanding told M. Burby that she was going to call me to
check out her conflict of interest.

So the idea that there has been no -- that's the
basis for the statements in our nmotion, so just for a
clarification.

THE COURT: Al right.

MR, BURBY: Judge, if | could just respond briefly to
clarify the record, we have contacted | ocal nental health
experts for purposes of assisting us in this case in a
consul ting capacity but not for the purpose of exam ning the
def endant, and the person we've spoken about -- | don't know
why we don't use her name, Dr. Julie Rand -- we did nmeet with
but we never discussed with her the possibility of her actually
exam ning the defendant. It was solely for her to serve in a

consul ting capacity with us.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

30

And after she raised concern that the defense had
call ed her about her examining M. LeCroy, we agreed that if
there was a conflict, if she felt there was a potentia
conflict, that we would not use her, and any references we
asked for were for other people that could serve in a
consulting capacity to assist us in preparing for the penalty
phase. Again, never was it discussed of her or any other
person she referred us to actually exam ning the defendant, and
that's conpletely inaccurate.

THE COURT: Al right. Well, | think the record is
clear on that point, then, and what | think would be usefu
woul d be if the government would, as part of its response,
check to see whether there m ght be sone local facility where
such an eval uati on could be done.

So | will take this docket number 219 under
advi serent pendi ng recei pt of the government's response.

And then the | ast notion al so received yesterday in
case nunber 2:02-CR-038 is the notion for stay of governnment's
ment al exam nation, and | assume that the government would |ike
a chance to brief that as well?

MR, BURBY: Judge, | don't know that we see the need
to brief that. W view that notion as sonewhat noot. The

Court's order was clear and | believe that our original notion
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agreeing with Your Honor's ruling on the application of Rule
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12.2, and | think the Court's order specifically says,
"Assum ng that the District Court does agree." And that
really seens to be the main point of the stay, is that nothing
happens until that is resolved, so | don't see that we need to
respond to that. And quite frankly, | would ask the Court to
deny it as nmobot. The Court's order addresses the specific

i ssue that's raised here.

THE COURT: M. Mendel sohn?

MR MENDELSOHN: Well, Your Honor, the notion is --
as things stand now, M. LeCroy could be whi sked away to But ner
Friday afternoon, and as | understand the Court's order on the
noti on for reconsideration, the government would have ten days
to brief the issue.

The notion for reconsideration and any possible
subsequent appeal to the District Court of this order becones
noot if M. LeCroy is whisked away to North Carolina for an
eval uation on Friday, so what we're asking for is that the
Court stay the inplenentation of the eval uati on order pending

resolution of all these |egal challenges to the order for
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evaluation. So it's far fromnoot; it's extrenely urgent that
it be heard.

THE COURT: Al right. [I'Il take it under
advi senent .

And | believe that covers all of the pending notions

in either case; is that your understanding, M. Vineyard?
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MR VI NEYARD: Yes, Your Honor. There was one ot her
unopposed notion for access to the alleged crine scene, and
just wanted to put on the record that we did make the
arrangenents, as directed by the Court, for the defense
attorneys to visit the crime scene, and | believe they have
done so.

M5. KEARNS: That's correct.

MR. VI NEYARD: W& would just like to put that on the
record.

THE COURT: That was in case nunber 527?

MR. VI NEYARD: Actually, | believe this was for both
cases 38 and 52.

THE COURT: Al right. But the crine scene being the

Lunpki n County jail?
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MR VI NEYARD: Correct, Your Honor

THE COURT: Al right.

MS. KEARNS: Your Honor, just for clarification, on
the very first notion we got, docket number 10, | had asked for
five days to reply, but you gave nme ten days in all of the
other motions. My | have ten days?

THE COURT: Yes. Yes, you nay.

Al right. Before we take up the Daubert hearing,
|'ve got sone | oose ends | want to tie up in case nunber 38,
and |l et nme ask counsel for both sides, first, apart fromthe
notions that were discussed today -- well, this isn't quite the
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way to say it, because | know there are several notions that
are pendi ng.

VWhat | want to know is what issues, if any, have not
yet been addressed by the Court as far as counsel are
concer ned?

And excl udi ng today, today's notions, what |'m aware
of would be the notion -- it's docket number 101, and you al
may not be able to answer it this way, but the notion by the
def endant to bar consideration and inposition of the death
penalty due to the inproper restriction on the right to weigh
the sufficiency of aggravating circunstances, that's docket
nunber 101; the motion to declare the federal death penalty

unconstitutional under Ring; the nmotion to declare the federa
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death penalty unconstitutional, that's docket nunber 104, and
think that's what we refer to as your big notion, it's the one
with the 80-page brief; docket 105, notion to declare the
federal death penalty unconstitutional due to infrequent use;
106, notion to strike the constitutionally-invalid aggravating
factors fromthe notice of intent; 111, notion to require the
government to provide a nore specific notice of intent to seek
death penalty; and then the notions relating to the expert

wi tnesses, |I'mnot sure you all are going to be able to tell ne
whet her there are other notions or issues outstanding in
addition to these.

But to the extent that you can, if you would, answer
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t hat question. Maybe you can't.

MR KISH | don't think -- we were just conferring.
We think that all of the search notions have been handl ed.

THE COURT: Al right.

MR, KISH. oviously, we agree that the notions that
you' ve just enumrerated have not yet been rul ed upon

THE COURT: Right.

MR, KISH. And we are pondering and M. Mendel sohn

and Ms. Kearns are currently speaking one with the other
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whet her there is anything else, but | don't see them saying
anyt hi ng.

M5. KEARNS: | think there were a few, like the
vi ctiminpact.

THE COURT: Which were deferred?

MS. KEARNS: Wich were deferred, right. So | think
the other notions that haven't been ruled on were deferred.

THE COURT: Al right. And you're not going to waive
anyt hi ng by not saying today that sonmething is still pending.
I"'mreally just trying to get a sense of if there is sonething
that | have overl ooked?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Not on that. | don't know of any
ot hers that you have overl ooked.

| do have one thing that | need to bring up with the
Court about the timng of the lethal injection proffer

THE COURT: Yes. Well, this is as good a tine,
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t oday.

MR. MENDELSOHN:  Your Honor, yesterday, we received
from M. Vineyard a 60-page docunent that is the first of the
2,000 to 3,000 pages to be provided.

Al that was was a protocol manual used by the Bureau
of Prisons. Unfortunately, it has none of the rel evant

information init. Information that we're really | ooking for
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i nvol ves protocols relating to the types of chemcals and the
timng and the manner that they are used, that they use at the
federal system None of that's in there.

As a result, we have nothing to give to our experts
to evaluate; we have nothing fromthat to proffer to the
Court. We are now, by my count, 13 days fromthe date that our
proffer was due and we have a Thanksgiving Holiday in the
m ddl e of that and are | ooking at |east 2,000 docunments stil
to conme, 2,000 pages of documents still to cone.

So as things stand now, | don't believe that it's
realistic for us to make a proffer on Decenber 1st, as the
Court has ordered. So | would want to request another week or
two to nmake that proffer

As the Court saw fromour Innocence Project, it's a
substanti al docunment that we're trying to prepare, and given
2,000 pages still to come, | just don't think it's possible to
do that by Decenber the 1st.

THE COURT: M. Vineyard, can you speak to that?
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MR, VI NEYARD: Yes, Your Honor. W have provided, as
we said we woul d, the docunents that are in the public domain

The ot her docunents referred to as 2,000 to 3,000, sone of
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those are going to be, | suspect, documents that are subject to
privilege fromproduction. So | don't think we're going to be
produci ng 2,000 to 3,000, the full anpunt of that.

THE COURT: Well, what about the protocol ?

MR, VI NEYARD: | believe we have provided that, Your
Honor, as part of the public docunents. | think that was the
first thing that we provided.

THE COURT: But apparently, it's not what they need.

MR, MENDELSOHN: Correct. It makes no nention of the
chem cal s used.

MR. VINEYARD: It's ny understanding it did, Your
Honor. I'll reviewit again to see

I've al so conveyed the Court's order about a rolling
production of information to the BOP and they are going to do
that. They started in earnest on Monday, yesterday with the
review of the privil eged docunents. They have been gathering
them | shouldn't say it has just started; they have been
gathering them But they are in the process of review ng them
for privilege, and we will produce those as they go through
t hem

So another point | would nake is that part of the

timng i ssue here is of the defendant's naking. | nean, he

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

37

could have sought this at a very nuch earlier date. W have
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been involved in this case now for a year and a half, and it
was only recently that this request was nade. And it was nade
in a 17(c) subpoena that was not served on us. And that sort
of maneuvering prevents us fromresponding pronptly to the
request.

This is a request that could have been made nont hs
ago, and so | don't think that the fact that the defendant has
del ayed in requesting this information ought to, you know, put
t he government now to the task of pronptly trying to neet his
deadl i ne.

I would ask the Court to hold himto that deadline or
close to that deadline with regard to this.

THE COURT: M. Mendel sohn, are there any provisions
in the protocol that you received other than the |ack of
reference of records to the chemical s?

MR. MENDELSOHN: Well --

THE COURT: | don't have a clear understandi ng of
what's -- of what's mi ssing.

MR, MENDELSOHN:  Yes, what this docunent is is a
manual used by the Bureau of Prisons, a checklist of things to
do in the month or so |l eading up to an execution

And it would say, you know, the security teamhas to
do these four things and the nmedia team has to do these four

t hi ngs and the adninistrative people have to do these things.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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What it doesn't have in it is the types of chenicals
that are used, all the real details of the actual execution
itself.

THE COURT: Well, what else is missing that you're
| ooking for?

MR, MENDELSOHN: Well, that's what we're | ooking for
Your Honor, and that's just not in there, Your Honor

THE COURT: Well, you know | would think that the
government could -- could provide that and should provide it.

MR, MENDELSOHN: Right. And | would al so note that
our subpoena for this was filed on, | believe it was, Cctober
the 8th, so we're close to six weeks that we have been waiting
for this materi al

THE COURT: M. Vineyard, can you pronptly supply the
i nformation about the chenicals?

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, given the fact that I'm

going to be in court this week, | suspect Thursday | can
contact my -- contact the BOP and inquire.
It was my understandi ng, Your Honor -- | would have

to l ook through the materials again and see that that
i nformati on was contained in there. If it wasn't, it may be an
oversight, but I will check that and see.

MR, MENDELSOHN: And there are substantial parts that
have been bl acked out under the Freedom of |nfornation Act

that, | guess, they assuned for privilege reasons or others



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

39

that we're not entitled to, and so it may be that the parts
that contain that information have been bl acked out.

THE COURT: Al right. | do think that they are
entitled to that information, M. Vineyard. | amgoing to hold
you to the deadline of Decenber 1, and if that needs to be
revisited as well, then, we will revisit it, but at this point,
I'mexpecting the proffer to be conplete by Decenber 1.

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, may | raise just one
guesti on about the timng on the notion for reconsideration
since we are approaching the end of the nonth?

I think our intention is to file something by the end
of this week, our response to their notion for
reconsi deration. | think the Court has given themten days to
file a response to that.

Could we have a nore expedited reply tine, if we, in
fact, are able to file our response by Friday, so that we're
not up against the deadline and still waiting for a response
fromthe defense?

THE COURT: Yes, since it is a notion for
reconsi deration, |I'Il give thema five-day period.

I have a question for the defense about the proffer
on this innocence proffer. And it's really -- | noticed the
way it was docketed, the docketing indicated that it was

addressed to several notions, and | didn't understand why it
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Did counsel suggest to the clerk that it be docketed
a certain way, or was that sonething that she took it upon
herself to do?

MR. MENDELSOHN: | believe that was done in the
clerk's office. W sinply presented the --

THE COURT: Okay. All right. It just didn't quite
nmake sense to ne the way it was docket ed.

MR, MENDELSOHN: No, no. It just goes to the big
notion, is the one that --

THE COURT: Yes. Right. Right. Al right.

| also have a question, and this really goes to have
I overl ooked something, in the defendant's notion to bar
consi deration and inposition of the death penalty due to
i mproper restriction on right to weigh sufficiency of
aggravating circunstances, which is, docket nunber 101, the
defense states in another notion, "Defendant challenged the
statute insofar as it required a defendant prove the existence
of mitigating circunstances by a preponderance of the
evi dence," and that's on page one of the notion.

The docket nunber of whatever nmotion that is is not

referred to and we have not found such a nmotion in the
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MS. KEARNS: Judge, we will have to get back to you
on that, and we will have to look at it. | think that actually

it is not the title of the other notion but the argunent is
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made in the weighing. |It's definitely not the title of another
motion, but | think it is an argunment that is enbodied within
anot her nmotion that was filed, and we have to look at it to
identify what it is. W will call your office and get right
back to you.

THE COURT: Please, yes. Yes, | don't want to
overl ook that, but frankly, we haven't found it.

kay. | think that's all | had before we begin the
Daubert hearing. 1s there anything fromeither side before we
start the Daubert hearing? M. Vineyard?

MR. VINEYARD: If | could just have naybe five
mnutes to nmeet, we have some charts, and get them set up and
ready to go? | think it will expedite the proceedi ngs, Your
Honor .

THE COURT: Al right. M. Kish?

MR. KISH: The only thing we would like to do is

i nvoke the Rule of Sequestration, but based upon what
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M. Vineyard said earlier, the only people would be M. Anthony

and this |ady who would be flying down fromD.C., so that
shoul d not be an issue.

MR VINEYARD: An that would follow for the defense
experts?

MR, KISH. Yes. They're not here today.

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, my point is if M.

Jackson's testinony rolls over until tonmorrow norning, their
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expert woul d al so be excluded fromthe courtroomfor their

testi mony.

MR KISH: That's fine.

THE COURT: Al right. The rule is invoked.

MR. KI SH: Thank you.

THE COURT: Al right. W will take a 15-m nute
recess.

(A recess was had, after which the foll ow ng proceedi ngs
were continued in open court.)
(Def endant LeCroy present.)
THE COURT: Let nme address a couple of things before
we begin,. | understand that the people, the spectators, were
having a hard tinme hearing and, in sone cases, the court

reporter was al so having trouble hearing the lawers. So if
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the awers will speak at the lectern, please, that will help.
Let me ask you, M. Vineyard, what you anticipate the
schedul e to be today, so that we can nake a schedul e, including
a lunch break.
MR. VI NEYARD: Yes, Your Honor. | expect that
M. Anthony's direct testinony nay take 45 mnutes, should be
no nore than an hour. M. Jackson, I'mtold, is trying to get
her flight to arrive here, but it |ooks like it would be |ater
this afternoon before she could reach Gainesville, as in
probably 4:00 o' cl ock.

| discussed with M. Kish the prospect of having M.
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Jackson testify first tonorrow norning and that would still
allow tinme for his expert, M. Denbeaux, to testify, so it
m ght be wise, unless I'mtold over the lunch hour of a change
of Ms. Jackson's flight arrangements, to just take
M. Anthony's testinony today.

M. Kish indicated his cross would be | onger than one
hour .

MR, KISH. That's true, Judge.

THE COURT: Al right.

MR, VINEYARD: And if by chance, she can get here
earlier and we can start her testinony this afternoon,

certainly, that would be fine.
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THE COURT: | do want the defense to have sone tine
to prepare their cross-exam nation, obviously. So tonorrow
i s Denbeaux?

MR, KISH: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: And how | ong do you think his testinmony
will take?

MR KISH: | would guess it would be about two hours.

THE COURT: Al right. And do you have any idea how
| ong your cross would take?

MR VINEYARD: | would think no nore than 45 mi nutes,
Your Honor, to an hour.

THE COURT: Al right. And so we have set aside the

entire day tonorrow.
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Al right. Well, it nay be that we will take a
substantial break follow ng her testinony, if it turns out that
she testifies in the nmorning, neaning Ms. Jackson.

Al right. And one other thing I wanted to ask
M. Vineyard about the protocol. It seens to ne that someone
in your office, even though you' re here and M. Burby is here,
ought to be able to get the infornation about the chemcals

pronptly to the defense and by the end of the day, or by
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t onorr ow.

Isn't there some way that you can arrange for that to

happen?

MR, VI NEYARD: Well, we will certainly -- | don't

have the numbers with me, Your Honor, but | presune we can find

t he nunbers for the BOP person and over the |unch hour

perhaps, try to make contact with them and report back to you

after

t hi nk,

before |l unch of M. Anthony,

after

Ant hony to the stand,

oat h,

the lunch hour --

THE COURT: Al right.

MR. VI NEYARD: -- what we have | earned.

THE COURT: Al right. Wiat we will do is we will,

just have you do the direct exam nation today of

lunch, if that's agreeabl e?
MR, KISH: That's fine, Judge.
THE COURT: Al right.

MR. VI NEYARD: That's fine, Your Honor

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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THE COURT: You may proceed, then, M. Vineyard.

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, the government calls Art

pl ease.

THE DEPUTY CLERK: Pl ease stand and rai se your

if M. Anthony could be adninistered the

right
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hand.
ARTHUR G ANTHONY, GOVERNMENT W TNESS, SWORN

THE DEPUTY CLERK: Pl ease be seated, and state your
full name for the record

THE WTNESS: Arthur G Anthony.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VI NEYARD:
Q How are you enployed, M. Anthony?
A I'"'ma forensic docunent exami ner with the Georgia Bureau
of Investigation's Division of Forensic Sciences, which is nore
conmmonly referred to as the Georgia State Crine Lab.
Q And, sir, what is your position at the GBI crinme |ab?
A I'mthe supervisor of the questioned docunments and the
forensi c photography section
Q And how | ong have you held that position, sir?
A For about six or seven years, now.
Q Were you enpl oyed by the GBI prior to holding your current
position?
A Yes. |'ve been enployed by the GBI since 1981.

Q And in what capacity were you enpl oyed before beconing the

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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head of your section?

A As a forensic docunment exam ner, or handwriting expert.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q Sir, how | ong have you been in the field of forensic
document exami nation?

A I've been working in this field for approxi mately 27 years
now.

Q And, sir, how did you get into the field of forensic
document exami nation?

A Well, | was enployed by the Federal Bureau of

I nvestigation in Washington, D.C., and | applied to transfer
fromthe conputer division to the laboratory division. And in
1976, after a testing process, | was accepted as a physica

sci ence technician in the questioned docunent section of the
FBI | aboratory.

Q And what testing process did you go through to be accepted
into that progranf

A There were several types of exami nations and also a form
bl i ndness test, which tested ny aptitude for working in this
field.

Q And were you accepted into that programafter this
testing?

A Yes.

Q And, sir, what kind of training did you receive at the
FBI ?

A As a physical science technician, ny training programwas

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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a part-tine program where | attended |ectures and classes in
the identification of witing, the detection of forgery, as
wel | as other aspects of the work. And then, | worked in the
FBI's questi oned docunents section for approximtely three
years.

Q Ckay. And what sort of training did you receive, what

specifically sort of things did you do while you were with the

FBI ?
A Well, | assisted forensic docunent experts in the
preparation of cases; | did conmparisons and file searches such

as the bank robbery note file, making conparisons to see if you
coul d associate individuals with having prepared bank robbery
notes. There is various types of files that were searched. |
prepared prelimnary reports to the docunent exam ners, who
then did a full-blown analysis and reported.

Q And how long did you work at the FBI, sir?

A For a total of five years but for approxinmately three
years in the | aboratory division

Q Ckay. And where did you go, what was your enploynent
after leaving the FBI?

A Well, after | left the FBI, | accepted a position with the
IIlinois State Crine Laboratory, because | wanted to becone a
forensi c docunment exam ner, and | apprenticed under the chief
forensic docurment examiner for the Illinois state police crine

| aboratory for a little under a year and was then released to
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perform i ndependent casework in a regional |aboratory in a
southern part of the state.

Q kay. And who did you apprentice under at Il1linois?
A St ephen McKasson.

Q And could you just briefly relate to the Court M.
McKasson's credential s?

A Yes. Your Honor, M. MKasson was a former posta

i nspector, a document exam ner who worked in the Chicago

| aboratory, and Illinois started a docunent program and he
becane the chief exami ner for the state and hired other

i ndividuals to work under him And he is an author of a book
and is currently in private practice.

Q I s he recogni zed as an expert in the field of forensic
docunment exami nation?

MR, KISH: Judge, |I'mgoing to object to that,
recogni zed as an expert. | think we have seen a nunber of
reports that have had different points of view.

| don't think that's quite -- we have to be careful
| guess ny point is, on how we use the term "expert" and
"accepted as an expert." So |l will object to the formof the
qguesti on.

THE COURT: Can you clarify your question?

MR, VI NEYARD: Yes, Your Honor.

BY MR, VI NEYARD
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Q Is M. MKasson, to your know edge, M. Anthony, been
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qualified in court as a forensic docunent exam ner to give

expert testinony?

A Yes, he has, on nunerous occasi ons.
Q And has he been recognized in the field for his expertise?
A Yes, he has. |In fact, he has lectured all over the world

and was hired by the Chinese governnent to instruct their
docunent experts for approxi mately over a year's period.

Q And, sir, how long did you apprentice under M. MKasson?
A It was just slightly under one year

Q And can you describe in general what that apprenticeship
entail ed?

A It entailed attending | ectures and cl asses and al so taking
exam nations in various aspects of the work.

Q And you said "taking exam nations"; what sort of

exam nations were you taking?

A Conpet ency-type tests, where the answer to problens are
known and given to you to exam ne and to come up with
concl usi ons.

Q Were you required to pass those conpetency tests to
continue in your apprenticeship and your enploynment at the

Illinois crinme | ab?
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A Yes.
Q And did you successfully conplete those conpetency
exam nati ons?

A. Yes, | did.
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Q And after you said a period of approximately a year, you

t hen began working as a forensic docunment exam ner on your own?

A Yes.
Q At the Illinois crine |ab?
A Yes, with cases being peer-reviewed, though.

Q Ckay. Now, and that led you then, ultimately, to the GBI
was that your next enploynent after leaving the Illinois crine
| ab?

A Yes, it was. | accepted an opening and started enpl oynment
with the GBI's crine |lab in Novenber of 1981

Q And just so we're clear, you were at the Illinois crine
lab from 1978 through 1981?

A Yes.

Q Now, sir, have you continued to attend conferences and
semnars in the field of forensic docunment exam nation during
your career?

A Yes, | have.

Q And do you al so present and publish papers in your field?

A. Yes, | do.
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Q And have you had occasion to train other forensic document
exam ners?

A | have.

Q Now, sir, you've mentioned also that in your current
position, you are head of the forensic |aboratory as well as

t he phot ography departnent; is that correct?
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A Forensi ¢ photography. 1It's a dual section, Your Honor
it's questioned docunents and forensic photography.

Q And what are the other disciplines within questioned
docunents? We're here tal ki ng about handwriting exani nation
but what other expertise do you have in that field of forensic
sci ence?

A The exam nation of inks non-destructively through infrared
i nspection, also the exam nation of nanipul ated docunents, the
processi ng of docunents non-destructively for indented
handwiting i npressions. 1In general, when a question arises as
to the authenticity of a docunent or who prepared it or how it
was prepared, many tines, it's submtted to the |aboratory for
anal ysi s.

Q M. Anthony, how many forensic docunent exam ners worKk
under your supervision currently at the GBI ?

A Two.
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Q And in the past, have there been nore forensic document
exam ners under your supervision at the GBl?

A No. Just two.

Q kay. And, sir, are you a nenber of any professiona
associ ati ons?

A Yes, | am

Q And could you sunmarize for the Court those associ ations
that you're a nenber of?

A I"'ma fell ow of the Anerican Acadeny of Forensic Sciences,
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Your Honor, which is a national organization conprised of

i ndividuals practicing in the various fields of forensic work.
I"malso a regular menber of the Anerican Society of Questioned
Docurment Exami ners, which is an organi zation conpri sing of
forensic docurment experts throughout the United States and sone
foreign countries. |I'mcertified by the American Board of
Forensi ¢ Docunment Exami ners, and |'m al so a nenber of the

Sout heastern Associ ati on of Forensic Docunment Exami ners, which
is a regional organization conprising of people in ny field
fromthe southeastern states

Q Sir, you nentioned that you were certified by the Anerican
Board of Forensic Docunment Examiners; is that referred to as

ABFDE?
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Yes, it is.

A
Q And, sir, when did you becone certified by ABFDE?
A In 1984.

Q And can you explain to the Court the process required to
obtain certification by the ABFDE?

A Yes. It's several stages of testing. The initial aspect
or phase is a witten exam nation, and if you pass that, then
you go on to a practical exam nation phase, exam ning five
different types of forensic problenms, forensic docunent

probl ems, and then there is an oral board, where you prepare

each of those cases as if you were going to testify to themin

court and the Board selects three out of the five and questions
DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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you on your opi nions.

Q M. Anthony, did you have the opportunity to be
grandfathered into the certification program of the ABFDE?

A Yes. | was eligible to grandfather into the certification
board; however, because of ny background as a physical science
technician, | felt that | would be better served to take the
exam nati on process to denonstrate ny capabilities in the
field.

Q And you successfully conpleted those exam nations to

obtain your certification in 19847
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A That's correct.

Q Is there any further testing or recertification for the
ABFDE?
A Yes, there is.

Q And explain to the Court what that involves, please.

A You nust obtain points sinmilar to education points over a
five-year period, the m nimum being 50, and it shows,
denonstrates that you are keeping current in the field, such as
presenting papers, publishing papers, attending neetings and
wor kshops and seni nars.

Q M. Anthony, |I'mgoing to show you what's nmarked for
identification as Government's Exhibit 1 and ask you to
identify this for us, please, sir

A (Wtness reviews docunent.)

(Pause in the proceedings.)

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter

54

THE WTNESS: It's a copy of my resume or curricul um
Vi tae.
BY MR VI NEYARD:
Q And does that accurately depict your experience and your
education, as well as certain publications that you have nmade?
A Yes, with the exception that there is an additiona

publication that should be added to it.
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MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | offer Governnent's
Exhibit 1 at this tine.

MR. KISH. | have no objection, Judge.

THE COURT: It's admitted.
BY MR VI NEYARD:
Q M. Anthony, | failed to ask you, if you would, to
sunmari ze your educational background for us.
A Wel I, | have a bachel or of science degree which was
awarded at Central M ssouri State University, and | received
t he bachel or of science in 1972,
Q M. Anthony, I'mturning to page 3 of your CV and | notice
there is a list of publications and papers, and anong those are
papers that are published in the Journal of Forensic Sciences.
What is the Journal of Forensic Sciences, M. Anthony?
A It's a peer review journal, and it's the official
publication of the American Acadeny of Forensic Sciences.

THE COURT: And when you say it's a peer review

journal, what do you mean by that?
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A That articles that are submtted are reviewed by peers in
the particular discipline that you work in before it's accepted
for publication.

Q Now, in addition to publishing in peer-review journals
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like the Journal of Forensic Science, do you al so present
papers at sem nars and conferences with other forensic document
exam ners?

A Yes. At both the meetings of the Anerican Acadeny of
Forensi c Sciences, the American Society of Questioned Docunent

Exam ners, and al so the Sout heastern Associ ati on of Forensic

Docurent Exami ners, |'ve presented papers at all of those
neeti ngs.

Q And those are to your peers?

A Yes.

Q Sir, approximately how many tines have you been qualified

to testify in court as an expert in forensic document

exani nati on?

A I'"ve testified at trials, hearings and depositions in
excess of 250 times. |'ve probably testified at trial probably
175 times.

Q kay. And when it wasn't in trial, it was in sone other

setting such as a hearing or a deposition?
A Such as like today, yes.
Q In fact, sir, have you been qualified as an expert in the

field of forensic docunent exam nation in the Northern District

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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of Georgia, in the federal district courts?

A On a nunber of occasions, yes.

Q And, sir, have you had occasion to go through a Daubert
heari ng before today?

A Yes.

Q And did you, in fact, go through a Daubert hearing in a

case prosecuted in this district, the United States versus

Ki r by?

A Yes, that was the case.

Q Sir, do you recall anything about that case?

A About the hearing or the case?

Q About the case or the hearing, either one.

A Yes. It was a handwiting problemthat was submitted by

t he Federal Bureau of Investigation to our |aboratory for
anal ysi s.

It consisted of several threatening comunications,
Your Honor, witten by Terry Kirby to the director and ot her
officials of the Federal Bureau of Prisons.
Q Sir, do you renmenber those particular witings and whet her
they were cursive or printing?
A They were both. They were hand-printed letters and the
signature was cursive on the docunents.
Q And, sir, you went through a Daubert hearing in the Kirby
case; were you found to be qualified to give testinony as a

forensi ¢ document exaniner in that case?

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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A It's ny understandi ng that Judge Baverman di d reconmrend

that | be permitted to testify at trial

Q In fact, did that case go to trial, to your know edge?
A It did; however, my testinmony was stipulated to.
Q Sir, are there occasions in which you conduct analysis of

guesti oned docunents in which you don't actually testify in any
court proceedi ng or hearing?

A On many occasi ons.

Q And what sort of circunstances -- strike that.

Approxi mately how many times do you think that has
occurred, where you have actually conducted an analysis but it
didn't result in you actually going to court in addition to the
nore than 250 tinmes that you have been into a courtroom or
ot her hearing?

A Vll, | would have to say many thousands.

Q Is there any way for you to estinate the total nunber of
exanms you have conducted in your nore than 20-year career?

A No.

Q In addition to conducting exam nations for your own cases,
do you do peer review for other forensic document examners in
your | ab?

A Yes, | do.

Q And have you done peer review at the Illinois, for
exanpl e?
A Yes, fromtime to time, | did.
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Q Ckay. And certainly, in your lab, the GBI |ab, you
conduct peer review for the other examiners; is that correct?
A In our |aboratory, Your Honor, peer reviewis 100 percent
of cases submitted

Q Ckay. | want to talk to you a few m nutes about the GB
crinme |lab; does it hold any accreditation, sir?

A It does.

Q And what are those?

A It holds two accreditations, one from approximately 19 --
excuse ne, 2000, we were accredited by the internationa

st andards organi zation, which is referred to as 1SO, and we
have been recertified by themor re-accredited by them| ast
nonth. And we're also accredited by the American Society of
Crime Laboratory Directors.

Q | want to talk to you for a few m nutes about the |SO
accreditation. Are all crime |labs accredited, to your

know edge, by 1SOin the United States?

A No. Up until just recently, we were the only |aboratory
that held that certification. There are sone toxicol ogy

| aboratories, | believe one in Florida, that is involved in the
racing industry that is 1SOcertified as well, but we're the

only forensic lab to nmy knowl edge currently accredited by the
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I nternational Standards Organization
Q And what did your lab and the GBI crine |lab do to obtain

that accreditation by the international standards organization?
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A We devel oped protocols and procedures on how to exam ne
physi cal evidence and al so cane up with a standardi zation
process so that toxicologists, for instance, in the Atlanta

| aboratory are doing the same type of analysis as those in our

Savannah | aboratory. |It's a standardization process.
Q And - -
A -- to ensure that the quality of our work is of the

hi ghest cali ber.
Q Does your |1SO accreditation require any auditing?
A Yes, there are internal audits done by our own staff, and
then there are external audits from experts from outside our
department that come periodically and inspect various aspects
of the | aboratory.

As | nentioned, last nonth, we did a total inspection
of all disciplines and all |aboratories by the Nationa
Forensi c Center Technol ogy Center, which is our accrediting
body currently.

Q You al so nentioned that your lab is accredited by the
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American Society of Crime Lab Directors; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And what did the Georgia crime |lab process -- what did it
go through to obtain that certification?

A Pretty nmuch the sane as the SO inspection. ASCLD is a
certifying board in the United States that certifies crine

| aboratories, but we felt that we wanted to do the
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i nternational standard, since ASCLD will nore than likely adopt
those at sone point in tine.

Q And what sort of quality control neasures are in place
within your lab as required either by these certifications or
by your own procedures?

A Well, there is procedures that we follow. There is a

st andardi zed work sheet that nust be conpleted during the

anal ysis of evidence. Also portions are docunmented digitally

into the case record for a peer reviewer to reevaluate, if you

will, that the opinions reached or expressed are correct.
Q I's your own work subject to peer review within your |ab?
A Yes.

Q And could you identify for us who the other forensic
docunent exami ners are and just generally what their experience

is?
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A Betty Gayton conducts probably the majority of my peer
review work. She works for ne and has been with the lab, |
bel i eve, about 15 years and in the section for probably going
on eight to ten years now.

Brian McVicker just joined our staff several years
ago, and he is just currently out of training the |last several
nont hs.

Q M. Anthony, you've nentioned that you follow certain
procedures in conducting your analysis; could you describe for

the Court what those procedures are?

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

61

A Vell, | refer to them as conparison, exani nation, excuse
me, comparison, evaluation and verification. There is no set
way in which | begin exani ning a case; however, typically, |
woul d assess the questioned docunent which was submitted to see
if the witing is sufficient in length, also whether it's
clear, is it an original or a photocopy, and then, | assess the
witing features in that questioned documnent.

| exam then the known standards which are subnitted
as the witings of a particular individual to determ ne, nunber
one, were they all authored in my opinion by one individual

and then | assess the characteristics in that sanple of
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witing. And then | do conparisons of both, evaluating the
handwiting features in the questioned and the known docunent.
And if there are sufficient individual idiosyncracies or habit
patterns preset in the questioned and the known, then an

opi nion can be rendered on the positive side of the scale, if
you will.

Conversely, if there are significant differences
between the two sets of the witing, then an elinination
opi ni on woul d be expressed.

Q Now, M. Anthony, these procedures you have described, are
they followed by other forensic docunent exam ners or are these
uni que to yourself?

A No. They are pretty nmuch standard throughout the

di sci pline.
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Q And are there any guidelines that have been published?
A Currently, there is a scientific working group in

guesti oned docunents that | -- |I'mnot positive if any

gui del i nes have been ultinmately published; however, they are
wor ki ng on specific guidelines currently in the conparison of
writing.

Q Ckay. And does your process substantially comport with

t hose procedures or guidelines?
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A From what 1've seen, yes.
Q Now, sir, you briefly explained or touched on the process
that you go through; does it result in a range or could it
result in a range of opinions?
A Yes.
Q And could you explain to the Court what those range of
opi ni ons coul d be?
A There are guidelines for reporting questioned docunent
opi ni ons published by the Anmerican Society of Testing
Material s, which has a nine-scale reporting scale from positive
identification to highly probable to probable indications, no
concl usi on, and then on their negative side would be
i ndi cati ons that someone did not, soneone probably did not,
hi ghly probably did not or did not.

Qur | aboratory has nodified that to a seven scal e,
elimnating the highly probable on either end, just reporting

out either no conclusions, indications did or did not, probably

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter

63

did or did not, and then, a positive identification and a
positive elimnation.
Q And, sir, can you describe what sort of things you | ook

for as an expert when you exam ne handwiting, what are the
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types of things you're |ooking for to nake your opinion?

A I"mlooking for not only general handwiting features,
features that are shared by nmany people that are conmon, conmon
types of forns, letter forms of designs, but I'malso | ooking
for those nuances, those idiosyncracies that we all inpart into
our witing, because we are individuals, and these

i di osyncraci es or nuances are what is inportant in making an
identification or an elimnation

Q Ckay. And you've nmentioned a couple of tinmes now
identification or elinmnation; are those both parts of your
exam nati on determ nation?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Now, sir, do you use any equi pment in conducting
your exam nation of questioned docunents?

A Yes, | do.

Q What types of equi pmrent do you use, sir?

A Hand nagnifiers, stereo mcroscopes, infrared inspection
equi prent, ultraviolet Iight sources, an instrunment that
processes docunents electrostatically for indented handwiting
i mpr essi ons.

Q And do you also work in conjunction with the photography
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department on occasion in reviewing and for preparing to
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testify?

A Yes.

Q And what sort of equipment are y'all using in the Georgia
crime |ab, photography equi pnent?

A We have gone totally digital since 2001. W use digita
caneras, scanners and digital printers for all of our work
currently.

Q And, sir, when you conplete your review of questioned
docunents, do you prepare your witten report?

A Yes, | do.

Q And do you al so prepare what's called a work sheet?
A Yes.
Q And does a work sheet reflect what you' ve done in

connection with that exam nation?

A Yes.
Q O let ne ask you, what does it reflect?
A It assesses what types of documents were exam ned; it also

| ooks at what type of features such as are they originals
versus copi es, photographs, the size of the witing, is it, you
know, contemporary, the height relationships, letter designs.
It's somewhat of a checklist to verify that you are | ooking at
t he docurment in detail and not doing just a cursory

exam nati on.

Q Sir, are you fanmiliar with the tenets underlying document

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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exam nati on?

A Yes.

Q And what is the chief tenet of the field?

A Basically, it states that no two people wite exactly
al i ke.

That is a variation or version of what | would refer
to as the theory of uniqueness, Your Honor, that is, that
everything is unique and we, as individuals, are unique;
therefore, the factors which go into our witing, such as
eye/ hand coordination abilities, our nmotor skills, our neura
systemare all individually unique to us and, therefore, we
inmpart little idiosyncracies in our witing, those telltale
signs that identify us as the witer of a particular signature
or witing.

Q And is that tenet or principle accepted within the field
of forensic document exam nation?

A Yes.

Q Sir, are you aware of any studies that have been done that
support that tenet?

A There have been many studies that have tried to prove the
i ndividuality of handwriting; however, the nobst current one and
the one that | believe is probably the nost serious piece of
research into that field is titled "Individuality of
Handwriting," which was published in the Journal of Forensic

Sciences by Dr. Srihari and his colleagues at the University
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System of New York at Buffalo. And | understand that either
Dr. Srihari or an affidavit of his is going to be subnmitted
expl ai ni ng his work.

Q Are you fam liar with any other studies other than

Dr. Srihari's that have been done, perhaps, that preceded Dr.
Srihari's work?

A As | nentioned, there are several. | can't recall --
concerning the individuality of witing?

Q Yes, sir

A | can't recall the titles, offhand.
Q Have t here been, for exanple, studies of tw ns?
A Yes, there have been several. The first, to my know edge,

was done by Ms. Mary Beacon, who is the first forensic document

exam ner for the Georgia Bureau of Investigation's crine

| aboratory back in 1960 where she examined the witing of tw ns

and came to the conclusion that twins' witing could be
differentiated from one another.

Q And, likew se, let nme back up to Dr. Srihari stated that
it did, in fact, support the finding of uniqgueness anobng
individuals in witing?

A Yes. His work states that -- it is with machine

exam nation of witing, Your Honor, and, evidently, machines
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can come up with currently a 98 percent greater success, if you
will.

But Dr. Srihari also notes that forensic specialists
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inm field would nore than |ikely have a hi gher success rate,
since machi nes cannot perceive those telltale nuances that |
was referring to earlier, at least, they can't currently.

Q Sir, are you aware of any studi es supporting the concept
that forensic docunment exam ners are better at exam ning
guesti oned docunents than are | aypersons?

A Yes, | am

Q And what sort of studies have been done in that area?

A Dr. Moshe Kam of Drexel University, he is the professor in
the data fusion |aboratory -- he is an engi neer, basically, and
conputer scientist -- tested individuals working in ny field

because of criticismby critics to see if professionals were
better at exam ning witing than lay individuals, and his
testing in our field has denbnstrated that we are better than a
lay individual or a nonprofessional in identifying witing.

In fact, his one work shows that there is a
discipline error rate of approximtely six percent in

m s-identifications, and the lay public or the nonprofessiona
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had a mis-identification rate of approximately 38 percent.

Q And Dr. Kam has published several papers on his research
is that correct?

A Yes, he has.

Q Are you fam liar with whether he has published any papers
addressing the issue of hand printing and the ability of

prof essionals to render opinions on hand-printed docunments?
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A He has. He had data as far back, | believe he says, from
1996 or '97, and because of criticismby individuals concerning

our -- our

being the experts -- ability to compare hand
printing, published an article in the current Journal of
Forensi ¢ Sci ences which cane out this nmonth addressing that

i ssue.

Q Now, M. Anthony, have you been asked to exam ne certain

docunents in this case?

A Yes, | have.
Q kay. 1'mgoing to show you what's marked for
identification as Government Exhibits 2 through 6. | tender to

you these exhibits.
MR. VI NEYARD: Phot ocopi es, Your Honor, have been

offered as exhibits --
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THE COURT: Al right.

MR. VI NEYARD: -- rather than the originals.

THE W TNESS: (Revi ews docunents.)

(Pause in the proceedings.)

THE W TNESS: Yes, these are copies of the docunents
that | exam ned.

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | would offer for
adm ssi on Governnment Exhibits 2 through 6 at this tine.

MR, KISH. Judge, Governnent's Exhibits 2, 3, 4 and 5
are things to which we have no objection for purposes of this

heari ng.
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CGovernment's Exhibit Number 6 is this digita
phot ocopy of a note, ostensibly, a photograph taken many nonths
ago at the Lumpkin County jail, to which we have our other
obj ections that we discussed earlier concerning the destruction
of the original note.

| simply want to make sure that we don't waive any
such objection by allow ng testinobny concerning M. Anthony's
exam nation of that photograph. But with that caveat, we have
no objection to that.

THE COURT: The exhibits, then, 2 through 6 are

adnmtted for purposes of this hearing.
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BY MR VI NEYARD:

Q M. Anthony, did you foll ow the sane procedures in
exam ni ng these docunents, that is, Governnent Exhibits 2
through 6, that you have testified about here today?

A Yes, | did.

Q And those are procedures that are followed within the
field of forensic docunent exam nation?

A Yes.

Q Sir, were you in conducting your analysis provided known
witing sanples to conpare to the questioned docunments?

A Yes, | was.

Q "' mgoing to show you what's narked for identification as
Government's Exhibits 13 and 14 and ask if you recogni ze these

exhi bits, sir.
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A (Revi ews exhibits.)
(Pause in the proceedings.)
THE WTNESS: Yes. These are copies of docunments
that were submitted to me for conparison purposes.
MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | tender Government
Exhi bits 13 and 14 at this tinme.
MR. KISH: Judge, can | voir dire on these two

exhibits before | state my position on their admissibility?
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THE COURT: Yes.
MR, KISH. Thank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR KI SH
Q M. Anthony, the one that has been --

MR KISH. Onh, great. Thank you, Russel]l

BY MR KI SH

Q Do you have copies in front of you or not?

A | have copi es, yes.

Q Let me show you the originals, if | could. | just want to

make sure | have our nunbering system strai ght here.

The one that M. Vineyard has marked as Governnent's
Exhi bit Nunber 13 also has a yellow sticky on it that has the
nunbers 21-D and then a parenthesis and a K. The one that has
been narked as Governnent's Exhibit Number 14 has a yell ow
sticky on it with the narkings of the letters of 26 and then

t he parenthesis of K
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Those nunbers on those yell ow stickies, do those
nunbers associate wi th sonmething that happened in your |ab?
A Yes. They are |l aboratory exhibit nunbers.

Q Ckay. I1t's ny understanding that you rendered two

separate opinions during your exam nation of the witings
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involving ny client; is that right?

A At | east two.

Q kay. There is nore than two opini ons?

I nmean, |

say

"opinions"; two reports that you have authored, would that be

right?

A There is a total of three, possibly nore.

Q kay. The one that has the yellow sticky with the letters

21-D, is that the first set of documents that you exami ned or

was the one with the yellow sticky of 26 the first set of

docunents, known documents, that you exam ned?

A Government's Exhibit 13, which is my exhibit 21-D, was the

first set of known docunents | exam ned.

Q kay. That's what | needed.

MR KISH Wth that, those questions, Judge,

you, | have no objection. Thank you.

THE COURT: Al right.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON ( RESUMED)

BY MR, VI NEYARD:

Q M. Anthony, you testified that you prepare reports

foll owi ng your exami nations. Have you prepared reports in this

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O fici al

Court

Reporter

t hank

72
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case, sir?
A Yes, | have.
Q I"mgoing to show you what's narked for identification as
Government's Exhibits 7, 8 and 9 and, if you would, just
identify by date your reports, sir.
A Governnent's Exhibit Nunber 7 is dated March the 12th,
2002; CGovernnent's Exhibit 8 is dated August the 1st, 2002; and
Governnent's Exhibit 9 is dated Novenber 13th, 2003.
Q And those are all reports that you prepared in connection
wi th your exam nation of the exhibits 2 through 6, or sone
parts of those?
A Yes.

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | tender Governnent
Exhibits 7, 8 and 9 at this tine.

MR. KISH. No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Al right. They are admtted.
BY MR VI NEYARD:
Q I want to hand you back Governnent's Exhibit 7 and just
for the record, so we're clear, if you would, tell the Court
what your opinion was as reflected in Governnent's Exhibit 7?
A That WIliam LeCroy, designated as item 21-D, prepared the
itemon item21-C. LeCroy probably prepared the item 21-A
note. A conclusion whether or not LeCroy prepared the witing
on 21-B coul d not be reached.

Q Ckay. And for the record, I'"'mgoing to go back to

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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CGovernment Exhibits 2, 3, 4 and 5 and just have you, for the
record, identify Governnent Exhibit 2 was assi gned what nunber
in your |aboratory?

A 21- A

Q And Governnent's Exhibit 3 was assigned what nunber?

A 21-B

Q And Government's Exhibits 4 and 5 have been separated for
purposes of this hearing as separate exhibits, but could you
descri be the condition of those two notes and what they are
desi gnat ed?

A Your Honor, these two notes on Governnent's Exhibits 4 and
5 were witten on a |arge topographical type map, or a portion
of a |l arge topographical type map, and it took two copies to
get both notes copi es.

Q And they are assigned a single nunber for that reason
because they are on a single piece of paper?

A That's correct. 21-Cis our exhibit nunber.

Q A concl usion could not be reached by you with regard to
21-B, according to your report; is that right, M. Anthony?

A Initially, yes.

Q Initially?

A (Nods head affirmatively.)

Q And that is Governnent Exhibit 3, which is the list that
has a heading, "Need to Acquire"?

A. That's correct.
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Q Did you request additional handwiting sanpl es be obtained
for your conparison?

A | requested additional cursive witing for conparison with
this docunent.

Q And did that result in you being provided what has been

mar ked for identification and admtted as Governnent's Exhibit

147
A Yes.
Q Did you then conduct another review with the additiona

exenpl ars?

A I did.

Q And did that result in Governnent's Exhibit 8, which is
your report?

A Yes, it did.

Q And what opinion did you reach upon further exam nation?
A That WIlliam LeCroy, item 26, prepared the questioned
witing on item 21-B

Q Now, sir, nore recently, were you provided a digital imge
that has been adnitted as Governnment's Exhibit 67

A | received a digital file, Your Honor, from Special Agent
Brayon (phonetic) of our Gainesville office through an e-nmail

of this document.



23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Q And that is a copy of the docunent, obviously?
A This is another copy, yes.

Q kay. And did you use the known handwiting sanples that
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are Government Exhibits 13 and 14 to conduct your anal ysis of
the docunment that is CGovernment's Exhibit 6?

A I did.

Q And did that result in the report, which is Governnent's
Exhi bit 9?

A Yes.

Q And what report did you -- what was your conclusion in
that report?

A That WIlliam LeCroy, itens 21-D and 26, prepared the
witing depicted in item 28-A which is a version of
Governnment's Exhibit Nunber 6.

Q kay. And what was the date that was conpleted; was it
| ast week, M. Anthony?

A Novermber the 13th, yes, |ast week.

Q Now, M. Anthony, in connection with your testinony in
this case, were you asked to prepare a summary of your

testi mony?

A I was.

Q And | want to show you what's marked for identification as

CGovernment's Exhibit 10. Can you identify Governnent's Exhibit
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10, sir?
A (Reviews exhibit.)
(Pause in the proceedings.)
THE WTNESS: Yes. |It's a copy of a sumary and

exhibits that | prepared in this case
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MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | tender Governnent's
Exhi bit Nunber 10 for purposes of the record.

MR. KISH. No objection, Judge.

THE COURT: It's admtted. And just for
clarification of the record, |I don't think | stated whether 13
and 14 were admitted, but they are.

MR, VI NEYARD: Thank you, Your Honor
BY MR VI NEYARD:

Q M. Anthony, in connection with your review of these
docunents, did you have charts prepared and phot ographs taken
of certain of the questioned and known writings?

A Yes, | did.

Q Al right. And have you prepared charts for purposes of
your testinony here today?

A Yes.

Q Let me show you what's narked for identification as

Government Exhibits 11 and 12 and just ask if these are copies
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of those charts?
A Yes, they are; they are reproductions of the charts that |
have enl arged and brought today.

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | would ask that M.
Ant hony be allowed to step off the witness stand. |1'mgoing to
ask himto go through the charts and explain his opinions, if
that's all right.

THE COURT: He may.
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THE W TNESS: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR VI NEYARD: And for the record, Your Honor, while
he is doing that, | will tender Government's Exhibit 11 and 12
so that they are part of the record.

MR. KISH: Let ne nake sure, these are only sone of
the ones that are attached already to Government's Exhibit
G 107?

(Pause in the proceedings.)

MR. KISH: | have no objection to those, Judge.

THE COURT: They are admitted.

THE W TNESS: Your Honor, can you see?

THE COURT: Yes.

BY MR. VI NEYARD:
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Q M. Anthony, if you would, using what have been marked as
Government's Exhibits 11 and 12, explain to the Court your
opi ni ons?
A Your Honor --

MS. KEARNS: Excuse me, Your Honor. Could we turn
the --

MR, KISH. Yes, and so M. LeCroy can see it as well
Judge?

THE COURT: So you can see it, too, if you can tilt
it so we can both see it, you may have to nove

(Pause in the proceedings.)

THE COURT: Can you see?
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MR, MENDELSOHN: Maybe a little nore

THE COURT: You can turn it some nore, M. Anthony?

MR KISH. | think we can see it now, Judge. Thank
you.

MR VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | can tender to the Court
as well the copies.

THE COURT: Can you all see?

MR, KISH. That's better now, Judge. Thank you.

THE WTNESS: Your Honor, first, | would like to

explain what is represented on the chart.
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Under the caption, "Questioned or portions arising
fromthe questioned docunents” and on the right-hand side under
t he caption "Known" are portions of the known witing of
WIlliam LeCroy, and certain aspects of the witing are
obviously nore significant than others and | would like to just
poi nt out several of the features that led me to ny opinions in
this case.

And initially, | would like you to | ook at the
| owercase P in the word "pistol" on the left-hand side of the
caption "Questioned,"” and you will note that it begins with a
downward notion going below the inmaginary line of witing and
retraci ng back upward. But nore significant than that retraced
stroke is the upper portion of the P, which is formed in a
triangul ar noverment, if you will (indicating).

You see that sane pattern repeated over on the
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ri ght-hand side, where the stroke, the initial stroke begins
with a downward notion, and then the upper part of the Pis a
triangular form not an oval or a snpoth curve.

I would also direct Your Honor's attention to, for

i nstance, the lower case in the word "not," it begins with a

downward notion, noving upward to the first arch but being very
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angular inits formation of the valley in the center, being
hi gh but angular and then noving out into the letter O wth
anot her angul ar upper portion.

You see that sane habit repeated under the caption

"Known" in the word "now," with a slight downward novenent,
nmoving up to the first arch, angling down, with an angl ed upper
motion forming a Vin the center, just as in the questioned
witing, and then noving on into the O formng that second

arch, which is angled and not a snoboth curve as P

The lower case Rin the word "for" | find to be
significant. |If you were to isolate it like in nunber 7 with a
slight tic mark as it exits, you will see that habit reflected

over on the right-hand side on two occasions there in the word

"for."

Sonet hi ng as subtle as the curved notion of the
downward stroke on the lower case T, | find to be significant,
and you will see that same notion beginning with a tic mark

curving to the left and then back over to the right into the

letter O
DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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A highly unusual feature that | found is the
anper sand, and under the captioned question, you will note that

the anpersand is nade with an initial noverment of a letter or a
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nuneral 3, moving, making the 3, coming off with a drag stroke
into the center portion and then noving downward and curving
slightly to the right (indicating).

This habit is repeated several tinmes in the known
witing, and you can see that here under the caption, "Known."
The anpersand is nmade like a letter, a numeral 3, pardon me
again, with a drag stroke moving up into the center downward
nmoti on and then curving slightly to the right (indicating).

The second chart shows other witings fromthe
guesti oned docunents, and |'Il point out sone of the features
that | find to be significant in arriving at ny concl usion

If you woul d, Your Honor, |ook under the caption
"Questioned," the first word, "thanks," if you would | ook at
the letter A, you will note that it begins with a downward
novement, curving into the upward noverment into the pinnacle of
the A coming down. But the significant aspect is that curved
initial stroke. Then, you will see that repeated in the word

"and" under the caption, "Known," that downward nmovenent,
novi ng up toward the pinnacle of the A down and then the
crossbar made fromthe left to the right, the darker portion to

the lighter, indicating novement fromleft to right

(i ndicating).
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The letter Ein the word "please,"” if you would | ook
at that, Your Honor, you will note that it's made initially
with a formation sinmlar to the letter C, and the center part
is placed and then the upper part is placed conmpleting the
letter form But you note that it sets on top of -- it noves
slightly to the left, if you were to put a perpendicular |ine
t hrough the back of the C

You will see that sane habit reflected in the word

"Emly," or the name "Em|ly," pardon ne, and the initia
novermrent is like in the letter C, with the center stroke noving
to the right and the top being placed on the E, but it is
slightly to the left of that initial novenment in the |eft
formation like a C, if you will (indicating).

Sonet hing that | have found to be very significant
and sonmething which | have tried to recall seeing in past
witings and | cannot recall ever having seen this, | know it
woul d be referred to as an ellipsis in grammar, in text, but
this is not atrue ellipsis, because it's at the end of
sentences. The word "hell" is followed by three vertica
noverents in the formof period nmarks, periods.

You will note that they are vertical and that the
| ast one being heavier in its formation than the first two
(i ndicating).

If you look to the right of the chart under the

caption "Known," the word "two" is followed by that sane series
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of three vertical novenents. That's a habitual feature of the
i ndi vidual that's shared both in the questioned witing and
also in the known witing, and that is sonething that | found
to be highly, highly significant (indicating).

Subtleties, as | nmentioned, in the formof indicia in
witing would be the slight tic mark or drag stroke in the T,
if youwill, in the word "that" on the | eft-hand side under the
caption, "Questioned."

If you look to the right of the chart at the word

“"that" under "Known," there is a slight tic mark also; it's a
drag stroke noving into the vertical down stroke of the T.

The connecting stroke of the T, the crossbar into the
H is made with an upward curving notion. You will see that
habit reflected under the caption "Known" in both renditions of
the word "that."

Also the last T in the word "that" on the questioned
side, with the crossbar being | ower than midpoint on that staff
or that vertical notion, you will see that same habit reflected
in the word "that," the second word "that" under the caption
"Known. "

And it's these features, Your Honor, these subtle
i di osyncraci es and nuances in the witing, which led me to ny

ultimate opinions in this case

BY MR, VI NEYARD
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Q And, M. Anthony, the charts that you've been goi ng over,
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t hose represent sonme of your findings, are just illustrative of
sone of the findings that you have nade?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And the Governnent's Exhibit 6, which is the

di gital photograph of a note, did you find some of these
simlar habit qualities in that witing as you found in the

ot hers?

A Yes, | did, including the ellipsis or the three periods

followi ng two of the words on Governnent's Exhibit 6.

Q Now, M. Anthony, was your work in this case peer
revi ened?
A Yes, it was.

Q And was it peer reviewed by soneone in your |aboratory?
A Yes, by Ms. Gayton of ny staff.

Q And, sir, have the questioned and known docurents been
nmade available to the defense, to your know edge?

A | believe they have.

Q And has any forensic docunent exam ner on behal f of the
def ense contacted you to review these docunents?

A No.

Q Sir, are there private practitioners of forensic docunent
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exani nati on?

A Yes. There is a nunber of them
Q M. MKasson is one that you referred to?
A Yes, earlier.
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Q And do they on occasion appear in litigation to render
alternative opinions?

MR, KISH: Judge, I'"'mgoing to object to this line of
guestioning. It seens to me that what M. Vineyard is
suggesting here is that, sonehow, there is nore validity to the
opi nion rendered by M. Anthony by virtue of the fact that
there was not a request for an independent defense exam nation
of the original docunents when, in fact, the entire purpose of
this hearing is an attenpt for the Court to determn ne whether
or not this entire field has sufficient validity so that it can
be proffered to a jury under the expert witness rule, so
woul d object to this line of questioning.

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, my line of questioning is
intended to go to the issue of peer review, which is a point
under the Daubert anal ysis.

THE COURT: 1'Ill overrule the objection

BY MR, VI NEYARD
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Q M. Anthony, | nmay have failed to ask you this: 1In

addition to testifying as an expert in federa

al so testified as an expert

A Yes.

in state court?

court, have you

Q Do you have any estimte of the nunmber of tines you' ve

testified as an expert forensic docunent examiner in state

court during your career?

A. Not the exact nunber

but many nore tinmes than in federa

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

district courts.

Honor ?

MR VI NEYARD

I f

THE COURT: Yes.

| could have j ust

(Pause in the proceedings.)

MR VI NEYARD
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one nonment, Your

Your Honor, | just want to nake cl ear

that 11 and 12 have been adnitted by the Court, which are

smal | er versions of the charts that

t esti nmony.

correct?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR, KISH. No, we did not object,

M. Anthony has used in his

The defense did not object,

THE COURT: They are admtted.

MR VI NEYARD

believe that's al

Judge.

t he questions we
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have for M. Anthony at this tine.

THE COURT: Al right. W will take a one-hour
recess and, then, we will resume and the defense nay
Cr oss- exanmi ne.

(A recess was had, after which the foll ow ng proceedi ngs

continued in open court.)

THE COURT: Pl ease be seated.

Al right. M. Kish?

MR. KISH: Thank you, Judge.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR KI SH
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Q M. Anthony, | don't believe we have ever met before, but
nmy nane is Paul Kish. You' ve seen nme here, sitting in court
this nmorning, haven't you?

A We net earlier this year also.

Q kay. OCh, down at the | ab?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And you've seen ne here in court, like the rest of
the awers, witing on ny pad here, right?

A | haven't paid much attention.

Q kay. You've seen how in courtroomnms, |awers often hold
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pens and pads?

A Yes.

Q Al right. And you've seen, sonetines, the pad and pen
touchi ng one another, right?

A Yes.

Q And you' ve assumed, obviously, that that's sone form of

witing; would that be true?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. But you wouldn't be sure that it was witing, would
you?

A No.

Q You woul d want to test that hypothesis by looking at it,
woul dn't you?
A I f asked to do so.

Q Well, would you be willing to, for exanple, wager your

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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career on whether or not what's on ny pad here is witing?

A Absol utely not.

Q You woul d want to test it first, before you nade any sort
of determ nati on one way or another?

A If it were requested, yes.

Q Ckay. What you do for a living is to look at |ines on

pi eces of paper to determine if you can render an opinion as to
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whet her one line was created by the same person that created

anot her line; would you agree or disagree with that statement?

A Coul d you define "line" for ne?
Q A mar ki ng made upon -- and |'m going to use the paper
here. | recognize that handwiting identification can be done

in many different ways, but a line is a marking placed upon a
pi ece of paper by sonme sort of instrument, under ny definition
woul d you agree or would you di sagree with what | said?

A That that's what | do for a living?

Q Yes.

A That's the bulk of what | do for a living, yes.

Q Okay. You would also agree with ne, |'msure, that the
thing we call witing in the English | anguage i s sonething that
is alearned trait?

A Absol utely.

Q Al right. And you would also agree with ne, | bet, that
nost of the witing that you have exam ned has been in the

English | anguage; would that be right?
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A Yes, the mpjority --
Q kay.

-- in English.
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Q And the vast nmpjority of the witing that you have
exam ned i nvol ved pen or pencil placing marks upon sone form of
paper; you would agree with that, wouldn't you?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. You would also agree with ne, wouldn't you, that
there are two nain categories of witing, one being cursive and
the other being printing, or sonetines called block printing?
Woul d you agree or di sagree?
A Yes, those would be the two nmmjor categories of witing.
Q kay. You would also agree with ne, wouldn't you, that
there are different styles of witing both in the printing and
in the cursive categories?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. Printing, let's start with that: Have you ever
been a school t eacher?
A No.
Q Have you ever taught printing or cursive witing to
initial witers?

Wien | say "initial witers," | nean either children
or sonme adult person learning to wite for the first tine; have
you ever taught it?

A. No, | have not.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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1 Q Have you ever read any studi es about how to teach

2 printing?

3 A Yes. |'ve read books on penmanshi p.

4 Q No, that's not what | asked you. Have you ever read any
5 studies on how printing is taught to first-time witers?

Yes. |'ve read books on pennmanshi p.

kay. How many styles of printing are there?

Formal styles that are taught?

10 ' mnot certain.

11

A
Q
A

9 Q Ri ght .
A
Q Tell me again the organi zations you're a menber of.
A

12 The American Acadeny of Forensic Sciences, the Anerican
13 Soci ety of Questioned Document Exami ners, the American Board of
14 For ensi ¢ Document Exami ners.

15 Q Do you get their publications?

16 A Yes.

17 Q You somretinmes submit papers to those publications, don't
18 you?

19 A Yes, | do.

20 Q Are you not aware that your own American Society of

21 Questi oned Docunent Exami ners has set out class characteristics
22 of hand printing involving 38 different styles of hand

23 printing?

24 A No, |'m not aware of that.

25 Q Woul d you disagree with ne if | told you that's what it

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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says”?

A No.

Q Al right. Now, in the books and the things that you have
read about how printing and cursive witing is taught, you've
al so |l earned, | would assune, therefore, that the early process

of teaching these skills involves standardization, right?

A Yes.
Q You know t hat each teacher -- and you probably renmenber
fromwhen you were a kid -- is teaching each student to nake

the sane letters in exactly the same way, right?

A They are attenpting to do that, yes.

Q kay. The effort is to make all of the letters | ook the
sanme, in an attenpt, as you said, right?

A That is the goal

Q Ckay. But at sonme point, according to the theories
underlying your field, some differences come in in between the
poi nt when the teacher first teaches standardi zed |l etters and
when the pen hits the paper that you later see, right?

A I"'msorry, could you repeat that?

Q "Il be glad to. At sone point, a difference, according
to the theory of your field, differences or distinctions cone
in between the way people formletters in between the tinme when
t hose people first learn their standardized witing and | ater
when you are exam ning sone witing; would you agree with that?

A Absol utely.
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Your Honor, that's the whole basis of the
i ndi vidualization of witing. If witing weren't
i ndi vidualized, all of our witing would | ook |ike that

copy-book style we are taught in school, and it does not.

BY MR KISH

Q How do you know?

A Just from observati on.

Q Have you ever tested it?

A On a daily basis.

Q Do you know what it neans to test a hypot hesis?

A Absol utely.

Q Okay. Tell us what you mean when you say you are testing

t he hypothesis on a daily basis?

A Vell, if | ook at the Zancerian (phonetic) style of
witing or the Zaner-Blouser style of witing and then | | ook
at the many, many thousands of sanples that | have exam ned
over the years, | do not find any that cone close to that
standard style of witing.

Q kay.

A In fact, the nost current form of penmanship taught in
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school s today, Your Honor, is called D Nelian, and it was
devel oped by a school teacher who recogni zed the fact that it
was usel ess to spend inordinate amounts of time to train
children to do an ideal al phabet because he realized that they

i ndividualize their witing, so he began by teaching an italic

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

92

formof witing, which could transition nore quickly to cursive
writing.

And even Harcourt-Brace, who publishes his system
states in their books that because people individualize their
witing, it's a waste of tinme to teach those ideal letter
fornms, because children are not going to replicate them
identically; as long as the witing is legible, then, it's
accept abl e.

Q You wote an article about D Nelian witing at one point
in your career, didn't you?

A Yes, | did.

Q That was 20 years ago, wasn't it?

A | can't recall the date; it was in the 1980s, yes.

Q You' ve never published an article on hand printing
characteristics other than that ever, have you?

A Not specifically, no.

Q Okay. Now, let's talk for a second about the differences

bet ween what you've called cursive and what |'ve called
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printing, or what |'ve called cursive and printing.
You woul d agree with me, wouldn't you, that printing
is far |l ess unique than cursive witing?
A No, | would not.
Q You told us earlier, | think, in answer to sone of

M. Vineyard' s questions that you renenbered testifying in

front of Magistrate Judge Al an Baverman in the case of the

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O fici al
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United States versus Terry Kirby; do you remenber that?

A Yes, | do.

Q And do you renenber
i nvol ving M. Kirby, you
simlar to this, right?
A Yes.

Q At the begi nning of

wi t ness chair, just
did that, didn't you?
A Yes.

Q At the begi nning of
i nvol venent with it, you
oath to tell the truth,

truth, right?

t hat

intestifying in that case

were in a different courtroom but one

t he proceedi ngs,

t he proceeding,

put your

right

you sat in the

like the one you're sitting in now? You

at |east, your

hand up and you took an

t he whol e truth and nothing but the



15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

10

11

A Yes.
Q And then, you were asked a nunber of questions by an
assistant United States attorney on two different days, right?
A Yes.
Q A defense | awer asked you sone questions also, right?
A Yes.
Q Do you recall being asked these questions and giving these
answers on page 1767

MR. VI NEYARD: Thank you.
BY MR KI SH

Q Well, it's nunbered serially, it's on page 176, at |ine

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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16: Question: "And in the courses that you took, what did
they teach you that distingui shed between hand printing and
cursive?"

Answer: "Well, | recall that it was pointed out that
cursive witing mght be nore distinctive than handwiting of
an individual, mght be."

Do you remenber giving that answer to that question
on an earlier occasion while you were under oath?

A I don't recall specifically, no.
Q Do you also recall at page 178 being asked the foll ow ng

qguestion and giving the follow ng answer: Question: "Okay.
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I"ve got it right. How about do signatures conpare?”

Answer: "Well, every case has to be taken on a
case-by-case basis. In some instances, if the hand printing is
very limted in its quantity, if you will, that would place

restrictions on any conparisons. However, if it's lengthy, as
inthis case, it really wouldn't nmake any difference whet her
it's hand printed or cursive."

Question: "How do signatures compare?”

Answer: "Signatures are probably the nost highly
i ndi vidual formof witing that we do, and when you say how do
t hey compare, how do they conmpare with what?"

Do you renenber giving those answers to those
guestions on an earlier occasion?

A | don't remenber specifically, but you' re reading fromthe

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter

95

transcript, so | nust have.

Q Wel |, do you doubt that you previously told Mgistrate
Judge Baverman that hand printing is |ess unique than cursive?
A | don't believe | said that; | said that it m ght be.

Q Oh, it night be?

A That's what you've said.

Q

kay.
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THE W TNESS: Each case, Your Honor, nust be assessed
on a case-by-case basis, and in sone instances, hand printing
may be very limted and void of any real individua
characteristics, but speaking in hypotheticals, | would have to
see an actual case in order to make an accurate assessnent.

BY MR KI SH
Q Woul d you be surprised to know that other exanminers in
your field specifically say that printing is far |ess unique

than cursive witing?

A I have heard individuals nake statements such as that,
yes.

Q Do you renmenber who those individuals were?

A No.

Q So at least there is sone dissention within your field as

to whether or not printing is nore or |ess unique than cursive
witing; would you at | east agree with that?
A Well, there is debate, | would say; | don't know about

di ssenti on.
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Q Ckay. Now, another thing that you do after you take
standardi zed witing that has, as you pointed out earlier
turned into differences because of the way people are different

is you then conpare a known sanmple to a questi oned docunent to
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see if you can decide or make an opinion as to whether the
witer of the known item had anything to do with the
preparati on of the questioned docunment; is that right?

A O not, conversely.

Q O not?

A O not.

Q That's right. You nentioned to us earlier in sone of your
testinmony that fromyour point of view, there are certain

uni que characteristics that each person has in his or her style
of either witing or printing; is that right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. You are assuming that those uni que characteristics
are repeated by that witer; is that right?

A No. It has to be denpbnstrated to nme that that is the
case.

Q Vel l, okay. |If you see a unique characteristic in a
person's known document, are you going to assune that they wll
al ways nmake that unique characteristic if you don't see it

agai n?

A It would depend, but | would want to see it repeated nore

than one, one repetition.
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Q Ckay. What you're really doing when you're tal ki ng about



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

uni que characteristics is -- again, we're conm ng back to sone
of our initial definitions -- you' re comparing one line on a
pi ece of paper with a different line on a different piece of
paper to see if they are, in your term nol ogy, a unique
characteristic; is that right?
A Vell, | don't know that | would termit that way. |'m
| ooking for repeated characteristics in the unknown with the
known or repeated differences.
Q kay. | want to talk to you about, then, how any of us
woul d get to the point to where a person could sit in your
chair and make such a conpari son.

You went to el enentary school where?
A In New York City.
Q Not hi ng in your elementary school education in New York
City taught you anythi ng about exam ning docurments, did it?
A No.
Q Al right. And then you went to coll ege where?
A Central M ssouri State University.
Q And you took no courses at Central M ssouri State
Uni versity having anything to do with forensic document
exam nation, did you?
A No.
Q You then went into the United States Armmy; am| right?

A Yes.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

98

Q And you had nothing to do with forensic docunent

exam nation while you were a nenber of the United States Arny,
did you?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. And then after you cane out of the Arny, you
started working at the FBI, you told us?

A Yes.

Q And you took what you called a proficiency test to see if
you could start along this track of document exam ning, right?
A In the formblindness test.

Q Form bl i ndness neaning a test to determ ne whether or not
you had any problens with your eyesight that woul d

prevent you --

A No, no.
Q No?
A No. Certain people cannot perceive differences, subtle

di fferences in shapes, circles, arcs or angles, and there's a
test that has been designed to assess whether you are form
bl i nd.

Q Al right. Now, and then you started learning first from
some docunent examni ners that worked for the FBlI and then

later, fromM. MKasson, who worked for the Illinois crine

| ab; would that be right?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. They taught you their theories, which are the sane
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theories that you have told us about here today, the theory of
uni queness, right?

A Vll, | would credit M. MKasson as inform ng ne of
looking at it in that regard.

Q kay. M. MKasson did not point you out in the 1970's
when you were under his tutel age about any studies that showed
whet her or not the principle of uniqueness was true or not
true, right?

A I don't follow you; | don't understand.

Q VWen you were first |earning about being a docunent

exam ner, M. MKasson didn't tell you whether or not anyone
had ever studied the principle of uniqueness to see if it was
true or whether it was not true, right?

A It's something that's probably unprovabl e.

Q The principle of uniqueness is unprovable, you wll
concede that?

A Well, as it relates to handwiting, it would be
unprovabl e, because you could not conpare everyone's witing

t hat has preceded us, everyone's witing today and everyone's
witing that will follow us. You have to nake certain
assunptions in the theory of uniqueness that you are logically
t hi nking has to be true; everything is unique.

Q The theory of uniqueness is an assunption, correct?
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A Yes, vyes.

Q Ckay. And it is based upon that assunption that your
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entire field is predicated, right?

A And experience and training.

Q Ckay. When you then have gone through your training and
you are then perform ng your task of conparing a known to a
qguestioned item you're |ooking, anong other things, for either
di f ferences between the two docunments or simlarities; would
you agree with that or not agree?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Would you agree with ne that one difference can

out wei gh nurmerous sinilarities?

A It may very well

Q Ckay. When, then, the docunment examiner is making this
conpari son between the known and a questioned itemand is

| ooking either for simlarities or differences, there is no
standard for how nany either differences or simlarities are
requi red before an opinion can be rendered; is that true or not
true?

A That's true.

Q In other words, too, what you would consider to be highly

qual i fied, capable, conpetent forensic docunent exam ners can



21

22

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

have conpletely different criteria for purposes of deciding if
they are going to render an opinion, right?

A It would be based on their individual training and

experi ence, yes.

Q For exanple, as we have just established a nonment ago, one
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di fference can outwei gh nunmerous simlarities; tw different
docunent exam ners very well may come up with a different
point, a different opinion, as to whether there is such a
difference in a case in which there are, otherwi se,
simlarities?

A It may happen.

Q Okay. You al so cannot quantify how many differences are
required before you can elimnate a person as a certain witer;

woul d you agree with that?

A Vel l, we just nmentioned that one fundamental difference
m ght exclude a witer such as skill, Your Honor
If witing is of a very lowskill level in the

guestioned material but the witer whose known witing is
submitted is a very highly skilled witer, that night be
sufficient to exclude based on skill al one, because an

i ndi vidual who is a poorly skilled witer cannot all of a



17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

10

11

12

13

sudden change into a very adept witer or an adept pen person
penman.

Q How do you know t hat?

A Wth experience and training.

Q Have you ever tested that? Have you ever tested that
proposition?

A Not personally, but I've known --

Q Are there any published reports on testing that

proposition?
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A ' m not certain.
Q Has this opinion you' ve just given to us ever been
revi ewed by your peers.
A It's a tenet in our field that you cannot exceed your
| evel of skill
Q I"msorry, was the answer to ny question that it has or it

has not been revi ewed by your peers, this opinion that you've
just given to us?

MR. VI NEYARD: Your Honor, | believe he was
responsive to the question in that he said it was a tentative
field that's witten, subject to peer review

THE WTNESS: It is witten about in texts that are

specific to this field.
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BY MR KI SH

Q I think you told us that the principle of uniqueness is at
| east the assunption that no two people will wite precisely
the sane way; would that be right?

A Yes.

Q A bit of a corollary to that principle, I'massuning, is

t hat each person, when they do wite over and over during the
course of their lives, they don't wite identically each tine?
A That's correct, but | would also |like to state that the
witing has to be sufficient in order to make those comnpari sons
accurately.

Q | understand. |'mjust tal king about in general, when
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I've been witing here all day, it's not going to be identica
each tine | formthe sane letter; would you agree with that?

A Absolutely not; we're not nachines, we don't replicate our
witing identically every tinme.

Q Now, because of that corollary to that main principle, |I'm
assum ng that there is a distinction in your mnd between

sonmet hing that is what you terned earlier a substantia

di fference which can elimnate a person as being the possible

source of a questioned docunent and sonething that is sinply a
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variation anong the witing of the sane person over and over,
right?

A Right. You're referring to what | referred to as norma
and natural handwiting variation; we're not nmachines, so we
cannot replicate all witing identically, but we do reintroduce
certain additional features fromtine to time, and those are
the features that are used to nake an identification or
conversely, nake an elimnation, if there are specific

di fferences repeated.

Q So using the termthat we're tal king about here right now,
a difference, a substantial difference, means two different
witings are authored by different people, whereas a variation
neans that it's sinply that the known witer has changed his or
her letter formation or witing in sone snmall or mnor way;
woul d that be right?

A Yes.
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Q kay. There are no standards, there are no criteria in
your field for distinguishing between a substantial difference
and a variation; is that true or not true?

A There is no standard, no.

Q Right. There is no set of guidelines that are currently
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published, right?

A That's correct.

Q There are no nunerical quantifiers applied to that process
of distinguishing between a substantial difference and a
variation, right?

A That is correct.

Q What you're doing is in |ooking at questioned and known
docunents and trying to decide if a difference is a substantia

difference or a variation, you' re using a subjective standard,

right?

A Yes, based on experience and training.

Q But it is your, Arthur Anthony's, subjective standard,
right?

A Yes. But | mght add that it is subjected to peer review

from anot her qualified individual

Q | do understand that, sir. The thing that you are | ooking
at when nmeki ng your subjective judgnent in determ ning between
a variation and a substantial difference, that thing you're

| ooking at is something that any |ayperson could see, right?

A Possi bl y.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter

105

Q Well, let's assune that the |ayperson has the sanme visua

ability you have. Ckay?
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A Yes?

Q Shal | we?

A Yes.

Q kay. And let's also assunme that it's sonething that you

observed only through a magnifying glass or a m croscope, that
t he | ayperson had access to those tools, right?

A And if they knew what they were | ooking for, yes.

Q They can see exactly what you see; would you agree or
di sagree?
A Yes.

Q kay. And it is what you see that is assisting you in
maki ng your subjective judgment, right?

A It's the observations that | nake, yes.

Q Okay. Now, you mentioned that in your job, you work for
the Georgia Bureau of Investigation's crime |lab, right?

A Yes.

Q As a matter of fact, you are the head of one of the

sections in that |ab, and have been for several years now,

right?
A Yes.
Q You' re the head of the section that involves forensic

docunent exam nation --

A Yes.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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Q -- as well as it has a photography conmponent to your
section, right?

A Yes, it does.

Q kay. You mentioned to us also, and | sort of sensed sone
pride there, that your lab is maybe the only one that has been
certified by this international group; is that right?

A Currently, yes, in the United States --

Q And - -
A -- other than the toxicology lab that |I mentioned.
Q Okay. And you also nentioned to us that your |ab went

t hrough the certification process of the American Society of
Crimnal --

A Crine Laboratories.

Q American Society of Crime Laboratories, right?

A (Nods head affirmatively.)

Q And to do those processes, in other words, to get
certified, you and the other directors of the various sections
had to make sure that you kept up with certain processes,
right?

A Yes.

Q Certain standards?

A Yes.

Q Unl i ke what we just tal ked about, where there are no
standards that govern document examination itself, there are

specific witten objective and quantifiable standards that are
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used in deternmining whether a lab gets certified, right?

Yes.

Now, do you do periodic case reports in your section?

On a daily basis.

Are those kept in any specific place?

They are kept on a computer system

Ckay. Are they revi ened?

| don't know what you nmean by "reviewed."

Are they reviewed by a person other than the person that
ites thenf

By a peer reviewer, yes.

c » £ © » O > O > O P

Ckay. Is that review done on an internal basis; is that
what your peer review is?
A Yes. And there are internal audits, and there are also

external audits, where randomreports are exam ned.

Q Ckay. Now, does your section of your |ab do proficiency
testing?

A Yes.

Q Does that proficiency testing involve blind sanmpl es?

A Not that |I'maware of; currently, we do not do blind
testing.

Q Then howis it if that's a requirenment of the Anerican
Society of Crinme Lab Directors that your section is qualified

if you don't do that?
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A | don't know.
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Q Do you keep records of this proficiency testing?
Yes.
MR KISH: | had asked for that stuff.
(Pause in the proceedings.)
BY MR KISH

Q Did M. Vineyard ask you to bring that stuff wth

you - -
A No.

Q -- your proficiency testing?

A No, he did not.

Q How difficult would it be to get that?

A Not very.

Q Are you the person that keeps those?

A They are kept in a database, yes.

Q kay. And give us a rough idea of what your proficiency

testing consists of.

A Vell, currently, we take tests supplied by the

Col | aborative Testing Organization in McClain, Virginia;, it's a
requi renment of ASCLD, and they send out two tests per year, one

concerni ng handwiting, some type of handwriting problem and
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t hen anot her questioned docunent type problem

Q And since there is three people in your section, | would
assune that these tests cone to you?

A No. They conme to a quality nmanager, who di ssem nates

t hem
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Q When you say "di ssem nates them" do you mean hands them
out ?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And one is handed out to you?

A Yes.

Q When was the last tinme you did a proficiency test, M.
Ant hony?

A Several nonths ago.

Q Ckay. And then are you told of the results of the
proficiency test?

A Yes. They are published.

Q Ckay. When you say "published,"” are they published to you
or in the public real n?
A Col | aborative Testing publishes the results and submits an
answer sheet to our quality nanager.

Q Okay. Now, you also talked to us earlier about this

process that you have called peer review. And that's p-e-e-r
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review, right?

A Yes.

Q Al right. Now, to you, peer review is sonething that's
done internally in your lab; is that what |'m understandi ng?
A Yes, it is.

Q Okay. Now, your |ab consists of yourself, another
docunent exam ner, and a young fellow who has just started in

this field; is that right?
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A Yes. He has finished training, but he is doing

i ndependent caseworKk.

Q And then after, for exanple, the lady you told us about
does her work, she submits it to you for you to be her peer and
for you to then review her work, right?

A Yes.

Q VWen you, her boss, do your own exam nation, you submt it
to your subordinate for her to give you her opinion about your
wor k, right?

A No. To review the data that's conpil ed.

Q Your subordi nates have never once di sagreed with your
opi ni on, have they?

A No, that's not true. M. Gayton has not disagreed but has
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qguestioned nme further about a specific opinion that | have
rendered fromtine to tine.

Q G ve us the specifics about that, if you would, please.
A Ms. Gayton has asked for further information or
clarification of what I'mreporting based on inages.

Peer reviewis not a total re-analysis of every
docunent possibly in the case; it is a review of the data that
is put or is an attachnent to a case file, electronic i nages of
witing with notations, arrows, annotations and so forth and
wor k sheet s.

But there have been tinmes when Ms. Gayton has

guesti oned whet her nmy opinion was correct and asked to see nore
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i nformation, nmore docunentation

She has never disagreed with you, has she?
No.

Now - -

Possi bly only in degree.

o > O > O

-- I'"'mgoing to show you Governnment's Exhibits 8 and 9, 7,
8 and 9 again, and those are your official reports of the three
exam nations that you told us about earlier that you had
perfornmed as it relates to this case, right?

A Yes.
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Q Attached to those reports are sone things you nmentioned to
us earlier, which I think you had called work sheets, right?

A Yes.

Q These work sheets are a format, | think to paraphrase what
you sai d before, that each exami ner is supposed to follow, I
think you said, to nake sure that you're doing nore than just a
cursory review of the document, right?

A Yes.

Q And for Governnment's Exhibits 7 and 8, there is a work
sheet attached to it, right?

A Yes, there is.

Q Those are the exami nations that you perfornmed back in the
year 2002 as it relates to this case, right?

A Yes.

Q But Government's Exhibit Nunmber 9, the npst recent
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exam nation you performed on this digital photograph, has no
work sheet, does it?

A There is no work sheet attached to this.

Q Did you do a work sheet?
A Yes.
Q

Okay. Com ng back to Governnent's Exhibits 7 and 8, there



7 is a section on each one of those that's called, "Technical

8 Review, " right?

9 A Yes.

10 Q And it has got a set of boxes underneath the word,

11 "Scientist," doesn't it?

12 A Yes.

13 Q And t hose boxes are all X ed in on Governnent's Exhibits 7
14 and 8; that's true, isn't it?

15 A Yes.

16 Q And what that X ing in of those boxes under the word

17 "Scientist" indicates is that you, the person who did those
18 reports, fulfilled all the requirenents for that particular

19 test, right?

20 A Yes.

21 Q Then there is a simlar set of boxes under the word "Peer
22 Revi ewer," right?

23 A Yes, there is.

24 Q Not one of those boxes is checked under either one of

25 t hose docunents; isn't that true, M. Anthony?
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1 A That's correct.
2 Q There is also a place for initials under "Adm n. Review'

3 and "Suppl emrental Revi ew' on each one of those boxes, right?
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A Yes.
Q There is no date under either of those nor any initials
pl aced on those documents, right?

A Ri ght .

Your Honor, this is a conputer-generated form and we

have changed our procedures. The |aboratory information
management system as it's called, keeps track of peer review
or notations and will not release a report unless these are

checked.

This is an old version of our form when we were hand

witing them W have since replaced that peer review colum
with an el ectronic version that is checked off by

Ms. Gayton. It has a PIN nunber assigned to her, and the
report will not be released until that has been acconpli shed.
So this, it has been peer-revi ewed.

Q How do you know?

A Wl |, because the computer will not release it unless M.
Gayton has released it on the computer. And there is
docunentati on that can be printed out to support what |'m
sayi ng.

Q See, because | had asked earlier for all docunentation

relating to this, so you're nowtelling me there is sonething
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in the database that we haven't yet seen; is that what |'m

heari ng?
A Well, yeah, it's in the database; it's not usually printed
out as part of the case report. | can print it out, though

it's not a problem
Q Ckay. | understand. WII that show what date this peer
revi ew took place?
A Yes.
Q kay. And |'massuming fromwhat you' re saying that it
won't be a terribly difficult thing, then, to get sonething
that shows that a peer review was done around the tinme that the
conput er database is going to show?
A " massuring you, Your Honor, that the report will not be
rel eased wi thout peer review authorization.
Q Who nekes that decision as to whether or not a report can
be rel eased?
A The manager of the conmputer system It was designed to do
that, so that | cannot generate a report wthout having it
peer-revi ewed.

THE WTNESS: W do not mail reports, Your Honor
it's on our web server and it's downl oaded by agencies that are
aut horized to get a copy of it, so it has to be rel eased
el ectronically, and before it will be released, Ms. Gayton has
to push the right buttons, if you will, including her bar-coded

enpl oyee I D and her PI N nunber.
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BY MR Kl SH

Q kay. So let's assune that -- and, again, you' re assum ng

obvi ously because this is the way your systemis set up that

there was sonme met hod by which your subordinate

revi ewed --

A I"mnot assuming; it is a fact, a fact.
Q This one is not an assunption?

A No, it's not an assunption.

Q Okay. Al right. And do you think that Ms. Gayton will
have an individual recollection of this particular test to
where if there is no record, she could still say that she did

t he peer review?

A Yes.
Q About how many such peer reviews does she perform per
year ?

A Oh, it's hard to say; | don't know.

Q You are her nmnager?
A | probably work several hundred cases a year.
Q And the only person she is peer reviewing is you, unti

the | ast couple of nonths, right?
A Yes.

Q Al right. So it would be a pretty sinple calculation

that the nunber of cases you do is the nunmber of cases that she

peer reviews, right --
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A Yes.
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Q -- assuning that, obviously, she is supposed to do every
one, right?
A She is required to do every one assigned.
Q In this calendar year, in which we are in the nonth of

Noverber, how many cases have you have worked on that she woul d

have peer revi ewed?

A I can't say, offhand.

Q You cannot hazard any guess?

A Maybe a hundred.

Q Ckay.

A It could be |ess.

Q Is there a database that shows us the answer to this
i nquiry?

A Yes.

Q Al right. And do you control that database?

A I have access to those statistics, yes.

Q Ckay. Does that sanme database al so give us the answer to
t he question of what sort of opinions are being rendered by
you?

A | do not believe that it's that sophisticated, no.

Q Ckay. What is blind testing?
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A It's when the individual in forensic work i s not aware
that a case is actually contrived, if you will, to test the
individual as to -- it's where the answer is known on a

specific case --
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Q kay.
A -- but the participant is not aware that it is a test.
Q Woul d you also agree with ne that blind testing al so

enconpasses the idea that there should be no suggestion as to
what the answer should be to the inquiry? Wuld you agree with
t hat ?

A ['"mnot an expert in testing, but that sounds reasonable
to ne.

Q kay. And would you al so agree with me that the two
organi zations that have given certification to your lab also
suggest blind testing, which has no suggestion of the answer

when proficiency tests are adnini stered?

A I"mnot aware that that is suggested by them it may very
wel | be.
Q Al right. But in the information that was given to you

in this case, |ooking at Governnent's Exhibits 6 and 7, it was

al ready suggested to you that M. LeCroy had committed a
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A No, | don't believe | was aware of any of the particulars
of the case.

Q Do you disagree with me when | tell you that the reports
on the evidence subm ssion formshow that they already told you
that this was a death case involving hom cide and sexua
assaul t?

A If it's on the case report, it's on the case report; |
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don't recall that initially I knew any of the particulars of

t he case.

Q Ckay. Now, when you are in your lab and you're having to
do one of these 100 or so cases you' ve already done this year
you nentioned to us that you're | ooking at sone things you cal
general characteristics, right?

A Yes.

Q And | think you told us earlier that genera
characteristics are things or features -- | use the word
"things," that's fairly indefinite -- that are features that
nost people have in their style and formof witing?

A Their class characteristics, yes.

Q Al right. dass characteristics, is that what we're

tal ki ng about here when |I say "general "?
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Conmon, conmon to a group --
kay.

-- rather than an i ndividual

o > O >

kay. So all of us in this room fromyour point of view,

are going to have these class characteristics?

A W may.

Q Vell, if they are common to the group, why may we not,
t hen?

A Because sone of you may individualize letter forms that

"' mthinking about that would not make them cl ass.

Q So if --
DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
119
A | would have to see it
Q | understand. |If the judge and | wite the letter Rin

the sane way, to you, that's a class characteristic?

A Possibly, yes. If it's very sinmlar, yes.

Q But if we wite the letter Rdifferently, then, it's a
what ?

A It woul d be an individual characteristic.

Q kay. How can you tell if the judge's Ris nore |ike

everyone else in the roomthan ny R?
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A Wel |, experience, |ooking at thousands and thousands of
letter forns and deciding what is a class characteristic as
opposed to what is an individual characteristic; it's

experi ence.

Q How many witers of the English | anguage exi st on Pl anet
Earth today, do you know?

A I wouldn't have a cl ue.

Q You really don't have a clue as to what is the usual way
the letter Ris forned by people who wite in the English

| anguage, do you?

A | haven't exam ned every R that is in existence today, no,
| have not.

Q This is another assunption you're making, right?

A What assunption?

Q The assunption that you have in your mnd of a class

characteristic for a specific letter
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A Yes, that |'ve seen before.
Q Oh, okay.
THE W TNESS: An exanple would be a lower case Ein a
cursive script, Your Honor; how many ways would there be to
i ndi vidualize that nmovenent? Not very nany.
BY MR KISH

Q | can't remenber if you agreed with me or disagreed with
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ne before that there are 34 known styles of the hand printing
that are taught? Would you agree or disagree?

A | don't know that that's the case. | doubt that there is
that many being taught today. | believe that D Nelian is
probably the nost prolific style of witing taught at schools
in the United States.

Q And when did the D Nelian style of printing begin to be
taught; does your research show you that?

A | believe it was in the nmd-1970's when it was devel oped
and first published.

Q It was actually devel oped and first published in
California, wasn't it?

A | believe so.

Q And it didn't nove east until about 15 years ago; would
you agree with that or disagree with that?

A I"'mnot sure. But | knowit's very widespread in the
educational systemin the United States. M children even

learned it.
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Q Sure. Do you know what M. LeCroy | earned?
A No.
Q Could you tell fromlooking at the known writings whether

he | earned D Nelian or a different formof block printing?
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A | cannot.

Q It didn't junmp out at you, did it?

A Well, it's irrelevant, as far as |'m concerned.

Q So if the questioned docunent had Zaner-Bl ouser printing,

it wouldn't matter to you what the known witer had | earned as
a style of printing?

A But it doesn't.

Q How do you know?

A Because | know what Zaner-Bl ouser | ooks Iike.

Q So what style of printing did the witer of the questioned
document | earn?

A | can't say. | nentioned earlier, we abandon al
reasonable forms of that systemthat we're taught; that's why
our witing all looks different. W don't follow that nodel
exactly; if we did, we would be able to superinpose everyone's
witing on top of one another

Q You nentioned to us the concept of skill Ievel when you've
answered a couple of questions earlier; do you renenber saying
t hat ?

A Yes, | do.

Q Al right. Skill level is, again, a subjective

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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determ nation by any particular forensic document exam ner

right?

A Yes, it is subjective, to sone extent.

Q Well, howis it, then, objective?

A Wel |, you can see a poorly skilled witer's witing and

assess that that's a poorly skilled witer as opposed to a
highly skilled witer, who is very fluent in witing.

Q But "objective" nmeans it's quantifiable. 1Is there a way
to quantify the distinction between a skilled and an unskilled
witer?

A Well, | don't think you can put nunbers to it; it's an
observation that can be clearly made.

Q Rhyt hm and speed are other features that you | ook at when
doi ng sone of your initial exam nations during a conparison
woul d you agree with that?

A Yes, | woul d.

Q There is no way to quantify or objectify the rhythmor
speed that a witer uses in preparing a certain docurent;
that's true, isn't it?

A Not to quantify, but it can be assessed.

Q Right. Another feature that you and ot her docunent

exam ners | ook at is the height relationship of various letters
and even of words; that's true, isn't it?

A Yes.

Q That can be quantified, can't it?

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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A It could be, but we do not neasure height relationships.

Q Al right. One thing that you can quantify, you don't,

right?
A Putting nunbers to it, |I don't know Because of natura
variation, | don't know that putting actual rulers to witing

woul d be of any benefit at this point in tine.

Q Well, if rulers would be of no benefit, would you then
agree that height relationships would be of no benefit?

A No. Height relationships are, and | pointed that out to
Your Honor earlier in the word, "that."

Q Ckay. How about the spacing between letters and words,
that can be quantified, can't it?

A It could be, yes.

Q But you don't do that, do you?

A Currently, no.

Q Al t hough you do use the concept of subjective ideas of
spaci ng to nmake a conpari son?

A Yes.

Q kay. The placenment of letters or marks or words in
relationship to a line on a paper is another feature that you
sonetines |look at, right?

A Yes.

Q Agai n, that can be quantified, right?

A It m ght be quantified.

THE W TNESS: We don't neasure, Your Honor, wth
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1 rulers to see -- to put nunerical values to height

2 rel ati onshi ps, spacing, whatever; it's just not done in the

3 field.

4 BY MR KISH

5 Q You just make your choice after the years of experience
6 that you have | earned, right?

7 A Yes.

8 Q kay. Letter design or construction, that's another

9 feature you | ook at when maki ng your conparison?

10 A Yes.

11 Q Unl i ke the previous three ones we have just tal ked about,
12 that letter design or construction cannot be quantified; that's
13 right, isn't it?

14 A There are sonme conputer systems that do |look at witing in
15 t hat manner, but the nornal day-to-day practitioner does not
16 utilize those tools.

17 Q kay. A subset of what | just said, | think, is

18 connecting strokes, in other words, the way that particul ar

19 letters are either connected or not connected to adjacent

20 letters, that's another feature you | ook at?

21 A Yes.

22 Q Okay. Stroke direction is something you often | ook at by
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usi ng your mmgni fying tools; would you agree with that?
A Yes.

Q And what that determ nes, sonetimes, is that if a
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particular formis masking the direction of the stroke by
soneti nes goi ng over once or nore, you can nake determ nations
by a microscopic exam nati on?

Am | nmaking sense with what |'m sayi ng?
A Yes, you can make those assessnents nicroscopically or
under magnification
Q Ckay. The questioned docunents in this case, what
instrument was used to wite with them{sic}, to wite on those
document s?
A | believe the majority are witten with ball-point pens.

Q Ckay. When you say "the nmpjority,"” there is only four
guesti oned docunents, right?

A | believe they were all witten with a ball-point.

Q Are you sure about that?

A Not 100 percent, but | know that at |east two are

bal | - poi nt s.

Q Ckay. Are there certain instruments that nmake it nore or

less difficult to determ ne stroke direction?

A Yes.
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Q VWhat are the witing instruments that make it nore
difficult to determ ne stroke direction?

A | woul d say sonetinmes possible a fiber tip or felt tip
mar ker, possibly, a liquid or a fluid ink pen, it nmight be
difficult to assess direction, at tinmes.

Q I"mgoing to read off another list and try to speed this
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up. Do the paper and the witing instrument, the slant of the
witing, the pen pressure and the pen direction, either

cl ockwi se or counterclockwi se for letter formation, are those
al so features that you | ook at?

A Those are all features that are considered, yes.

Q Okay. Now, you told us also about when you finally have
gone through your conparison after |ooking at these features
and usi ng whatever tools are at your disposal, you yield an
opi nion of one formor another, right? And |I'mincluding the
i nconcl usi ve as being an opinion

A Yes.

Q kay. And it's a spectrumfrombeing able to nake the
strongest associ ati on between the known and the questioned on
the one end of the spectrumto the strongest disassociation

bet ween t he known and the questioned on the other end of the
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spectrum would you agree with that?

A Yes.

Q And there are different words for where you mght be on
the spectrum right?

A Yes.

Q You nentioned to us this international organization has

ni ne places on the spectrunf®?

A The American Society of Testing Materials has a nine-scale
opi ni on.

Q Right. Right, but your |ab uses seven places roughly

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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simlar?
A Yes.
Q Okay. You and every other forensic document exam ner nake

a subjective decision as to where to place your opinion on that
spectrum right?

A Yes.

Q There is no standardi zati on what soever to gui de a docunent
exam ner as to where on that spectrumhis or her opinion cones
out ?

A It's based solely on experience and training.

Q It's a judgnent call, right?
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A It is a judgnent call, yes.

Q There has been no testing that you are aware of,

nothing in the literature as to whether or not al

there is

forensic

docunent exam ners are using the sane subjective neasurenent

when they decide where on that spectrumthey are coming out?

A No.

Q Now, you mentioned to us earlier that you had heard of

sone studies that you thought m ght have sonmething to do with

the principle of uniqueness, right?

A "The Individuality of Witing."

Q Okay. You prefer calling it the individuality of

witing?
THE WTNESS: That's the title of the paper, Your
Honor, by Dr. Srihari.
DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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BY MR KI SH
Q kay. Have you read the paper?
A Yes.
Q | thought you told us earlier that you' re not an expert in
testing?
A ' m not .
Q Okay. So all you know is what you've read, real frankly;

that's not your field?
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A Correct.
Q kay. You also nentioned to us a Dr. Mbshe Kam which you
t hought had done sone work on whether or not forensic docunent
exam ners do a better or a worse job than |ay peopl e when
| ooking at these lines and neki ng conparisons, right?

THE WTNESS: | didn't think that, Your Honor; |
stated that he did do studies.
BY MR KI SH:
Q And | wrote down that you said that your recollection of
Dr. Kams work is that Dr. Kam said that forensic document
exam ners make far less errors than do |ay people, right?
A Yes. But Dr. Kam | understand, will be here to address
his research, better than | could articulate it.
Q I know, but you've brought that up, so | would like to
tal k about your understanding of it. | think you used the
words "error rate"; do you renenber saying that?

A Yes.
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Q And | think you used the termthat the forensic docunent
exam ners, under Dr. Kamls report, had an error rate of 6
percent and the |ay people in the 38 or 39 percent range?

A That's correct.

Q Al right. D d you also know that in that exact, sane
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report, Dr. Kamhad a different test for how well |ay people
and forensic docunent exam ners do when they are correct, in

ot her words, not when they make a mi stake but when they are
right? Did you read that in his report?

A Yes.

Q And did you notice that when it cones to doing the exact
thing you've done in this case, which is making a match between
a questioned and a known, Dr. Kam said that you and the |ay
peopl e both are successful 87 percent of the tinme? Did you
notice that?

A Yes.

Q Now, | assume that you have al so kept up on the fact that
the federal courts have been a little nore stringent in your
field within the I ast 15 years? Wuld you agree, or have you
kept up on your reading on that?

A VWhen you say "stringent" --

Q Vel l, you nmentioned to M. Vineyard earlier that you
actually testified in a Daubert hearing on an earlier occasion,
right?

A Yes.
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Q And you know, now, that Daubert is the name of a case that
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requires federal judges to assess expert witness testinony in
sone situations before it can be presented to a jury, right?
A Yes.

Q Up until the Kirby case, you had never had to do that
before, had you?

A No.

Q As a matter of fact, the Kirby case is the only tine any
| awyers have ever chall enged whether you can testify as an
expert pretrial in federal court, right?

A Wel |, they have protested ny testifying but not in a
Daubert heari ng.

Q Ckay. Have you kept up with readi ng about how many
federal judges have decided that your field is not an
expertise?

A Very few. The majority are in favor of allow ng testinony
in, is nmy understandi ng.

Q And where are you getting your understanding fronf

A Fromthe Internet, fromcolleagues, fromreports, reading

court deci sions.

Q | see. GCkay. Cbviously, you're not a |awer?
A Oh, of course not.
Q Ckay. 1'mgoing to hand to you what's al ready been

admtted as Government's Exhibit Nunmber 10 and Governnent's

Exhi bit 14 here. Governnment Exhibit Nunber 10 is the sumary

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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t hat you hel ped the government prepare, and Governnment's
Exhi bit Nunber 14 is a group of sonme of the questions or the
known witings that were submtted to you.

Al right. Now, you' ve seen all those itens before,
haven't you?
A Yes.
Q Now, if you turn over to the sunmary, at the very back
you had prepared a nunber or you had hel ped the government put
t oget her a number of pages that were copies of photographs that
i ncl uded enl argements from what you thought were rel evant
portions of both the questioned and the known documents, right?
A VWhen you say prepared for the government, you mean the

denpnstrative charts?

Q Yes, sir, that's what | nean.
A Yes, | prepared those.
Q In other words, there is nore of those attached to that

beyond what you showed us on this large stand-up easel this

nor ni ng?

A Yes.

Q Okay. | want you to turn over to in Governnent's Exhibit
10 the very first of those -- | guess we will call them
charts.

A (Wtness complies with request of counsel.)

Q kay. And what that first chart has is eight different

sections of witing that have been extracted by you fromeither
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the known witing of WlliamLeCroy, Jr., or fromthe
guesti oned docunents in this case, right?

THE COURT: M. Kish, would you mnd just putting the
exhibit on the board, so | could followit as well?

MR KISH: | would, except this one, we don't have a
chart.

THE COURT: Ch.

MR, KISH: Wat | could do, Judge, is hand up --

(Pause in the proceedings.)

MR KISH 1'mgoing to hand to your |aw clerk,
Judge, this document.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. KISH: Yes, | apol ogize.
BY MR KISH
Q It has these eight different extractions fromeither the
known or the questioned docunment, right?
A Yes.
Q And you did sonme of these extractions, because | think, as
you told us this nmorning, they were significant to your
opi nion, right?
A They were done for the purposes of peer review, Your
Honor, not for denonstrative purposes at trial; they are

attachments to nmy case notes.
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Q Well, were they not significant, then, to your opinion?

A Yes.

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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Q Ch, okay. The first one on the upper |eft-hand side has
the word T-h-a-n-k-s, | believe, in hand-printed formand it
cones fromone of the questioned docunents, which wthin your

| ab was given nunber 21-Q That's right, isn't it?

A 21-C.

Q 21-C, you're right.

A (Nods head affirmatively.)

Q And then you focused with two little arrows on the bottom
portion of the letter N and the bottomleft portion of the
letter Awithin that word "Thanks"; that's right, isn't it?

A Yes.

Q You did the sane thing directly below that with a section
of somet hing that cane out of one of the known witings, right?
A Yes.

Q Agai n, you focused on the letter Ain the word A-l-1; you
put a little arrow towards the bottom | eft-hand side of that
letter; that's true, isn't it?

A Yes, it is.

Q And directly below that, you did the same thing with the
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letter

A

Q
|

dated 12/18/94.

Yes.

N, as extracted fromone of the known witings,

right?

Now, let's turn through the exhibit of known witings that

have just handed to you and turn over to a letter that's

pages in.

A

Q

second |i ne,

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O fici al

It should be one, two,

Court

three, four,

(Wtness complies with request of counsel.)

The third paragraph,

| eft-hand side of the |ine,

known witing, do you see that A?

A

Q

Yes.

Reporter

five, six

134

the 9th line of the third paragraph

the word A-n-d in this

Take that and conpare that to the A in your questioned

docunent that you have got right there.

A
Q
A
Q

your opi ni on,

kay.

They're different, aren't they?

There is a variation, yes.

So to el aborate on what we said earlier, if

vari ation?

A

Q

It's a semantical thing, but yes.

Have you ever

you | ose"?

A

Yes.

heard the expression,

" Heads,

it

it's asimlarity; if it's different,

mat ches

it

W n;

S a

tails,
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Q Now, let's turn over, then, to two nore pages, a letter
that has about 15 lines of text and ends with the salutation
"Love, Big Brother"; the third Iine dow fromthe top, the
ri ght-hand side of that line, the word "As," capital A, snal
S.

A I"msorry, I"'mlost. Wich docunent are you talking
about, this letter?

Q Vell, as | said, it's the letter dated 2/22/94 and it's

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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t he second page of that letter
A (Reviews exhibit.)

(Pause in the proceedings.)

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

BY MR KI SH
Q Third |ine down, right-hand side of the line, the word is
capital A snall S. Take a look at that capital A and conpare
it to your questioned capital A?
A We're tal king about the first page on 2/22/94?
Q The second page sir, | apologize. The third |ine down
fromthe top.
A | see it.

Q That capital A versus the capital A in your questioned
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docunent, this tine, they're even nore different, aren't they?

A There is a cursive A as conpared to the printed A

Q But the entire rest of this letter is all in printing,
isn't it?

A Not all of it, there are some script letters init.

Q Okay. But, again, this would be something that is

di fferent than what you've found in the questioned document,
right?

A | consider it to be a normal and natural variation of the
i ndi vidual, not indications of another witer. There is
sufficient individuality between the questioned material and

the known material, based on ny experience and training, for ne

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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to make the opinion that | have nade. And | am assessing these
ot her characteristics that you're pointing out and calling
di fferences as normal and natural variation
Q Let's turn over to the letter dated August 7th, 2001

THE COURT: M. Kish, again, | don't have these
letters, do you have copies or --

MR KISH. | do, Judge, and | can give you anot her
set. Yes, | can give you a set right here.

I want to make sure | have themin the correct order
so that you can follow al ong.

(Pause in the proceedings.)
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MR, KISH: Judge, | had sone little nmarkings on this
one that I'mgoing to renmove so that there won't be any
potential prejudice, and | will hand these to your clerk.

THE COURT: And we will give them back

MR. KISH: And | can never find my markings again.

(Pause in the proceedings.)
BY MR KISH
Q VWhat we are on now, sir, is the letter dated August 7th,
2001, and | want you to look at the letter Ain the word
"August." Do you see that?
A Yes.
Q And then | ook back to the letter A on the upper |eft-hand
side of your questioned or your chart here on the questioned

docunent. Again, this is different in that it doesn't have the

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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little tail that you found so significant on the | ower

| eft-hand side of the letter, right?

A Yes, it does not.

Q Let's foll ow down that page, one, two, three, four --
about twenty-two lines, and this is the word, "Anyway," with a
capital A again, with no little left hand | ower side marking

that was so significant to you when you decided it was
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significant.

A Yes.

Q The next page of the sane letter, the top line, the word
As, A-s, no little left hand side marki ng you found so
significant there, is there?

A That's correct.

Q The bottom of the page, one, two, three, four lines from
the bottom the word "And,"” no little left hand | ower side mark
you found so significant on that capital A is there?

A No.

Q The next page, July 1st, 2001, twelve lines down, the word
is capital A small L-L, the sane thing | just said previously
is true, isn't it, nolittle mark on the left-hand side of the
A right?

A Correct.

Q Al right. Five nore |lines down, the |left-hand side, the
word is capital A small RE, no little mark on the |eft-hand

side of the capital Athere, is there?
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A No.
Q Let's then go over to it's |like about four nore pages to a
letter that has no date but which starts with the salutation

"Kristie," K-r-i-s-t-i-e, and after that salutation, on the
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second line is the word "Aunt," A-u-n-t. That capital A
doesn't look like the A in your questioned docunment, does it,

because it doesn't have the little nark on the |eft side,

right?
A Ri ght .
Q The Iine bel ow that where in parentheses, there is "A" and

then "Mother," that capital A doesn't |ook Iike the questioned
one, does it?

A Not exactly, no.

Q Well, it doesn't have the little mark that you found so
significant, does it?

A No.

Q There's the first paragraph and then there is the second
par agraph, and the last |line of that second paragraph is the

words "And Julie, too. That capital A doesn't have the nmark
you found so significant in the questioned docunent, does it?
A I don't see where you're tal king about.

Q There is two paragraphs, the first two paragraphs after

the salutation "Kristie," do you see that?

A Yes.

Q At the very end of that second of those first two

DONNA C. KEEBLE, Oficial Court Reporter
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par agraphs is a short phrase, "And Julie, too.
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A Yes, | see that.

Q That capital A doesn't have the distinctive mark you found
in the questioned docunment, does it?

A No, it does not.

Q Turning over to a letter dated 7/1/94 and the second of
those two pages on that letter, three lines up fromthe bottom
on the left-hand side is the phrase, "And you are required.”
That capital A doesn't have the little mark you found so
significant on the questioned one, does it?

A No.

Q Let's go over to the letter dated 3/27/94, the last |ine
on the first page, the word is A-r-e. That capital A doesn't
have the marking that you found so significant, does it?

A No.

Q Now, you also on this one word "Thanks" that you found so
significant for the As, you also found the letter Nto be of
some inport to your opinion, didn't you?

A Yes.

Q And as a matter of fact, you' ve made a little marking on
your chart for the Iower left-hand side of the capital letter N
that had that sanme sort of little tail onit, and you found a
pl ace in the questioned docunents -- the known documents, |'m
sorry, that had the sane little tail, and to you, that was

significant, wasn't it?

DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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A Yes.
Q Let's go back to the front of our group of known docunents
here, back to 12/18/94, the very bottomline, under "Happy New

Year," the capital N

A M. Kish, | have to catch up with you. 12/18/947

Q Ri ght, we just turn our docunents back over to where we
start. "Happy New Year" at the bottom the N doesn't have the
little tail, does it?

A No, it does not.
Q Turn over to the letter dated February 22, '94, and this
time, we're going three lines fromthe top, and the word is
"Not," capital N, N-o-t, and that N doesn't have the little
telltale tail, so-to-speak, does it?
A No, but the word "Nanny" al nbst to the bottom of the page,
let's see, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 7 lines fromthe bottom does.
Q So when it matches, your opinion, it's inmportant; when it
doesn't, you just discard it?
A No.

THE WTNESS: As | explained to Your Honor earlier
variation is nornmal, it's natural, it's expected. The
i ndi vi dual nuances, the idiosyncracies are not there at each
and every letter form but when they are present, they are
significant. And these features are significant and they are
present, but not in every letter

BY MR KI SH
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Q But a docunent exaniner, just |ike yourself --

A And they are not taken --

Q I"msorry, | didn't nmean to interrupt you. Go ahead.

A And they are not taken by thenselves, it's additive.
The ellipsis that | referred to earlier is throughout the
docunents; that is highly significant and probably nore
significant than the upturn on the N

Q Good. | want to talk to you about that ellipsis for a
second. What is an ellipsis?

A Well, in grammar, it's a bridge between two thoughts or
phrases in a sentence where words are left out, but in this
case, as | said earlier, | don't think it's really a true
ellipsis, it's just an enphasis at the end of a sentence.

Q This is not handwiting; a ellipsis is punctuation or
gr ammar .

A Absol utely.

Q Are there any studies that you're aware of that you can
identify a witer by virtue of grammar or punctuation?

A Yes, there is.

Q And what are those, and are you qualified in that field?
A Absolutely not. These are witten nmarkings at the end of

a sentence.



23 Q VWait a minute. You just told us a second ago that this
24  was highly significant --

25 A Absol utely.
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1 Q -- but you're not qualified in this field of making
2 det erm nati ons based on grammar and punctuation?
3 A Absolutely | am in punctuation, handwitten punctuation
4 as significant as that is.
5 Q Well, that's what I'mgetting at, is --
6 A It's highly significant.
7 Q -- up until now, you've told us you've been | ooking at
8 letter forns and, now, you're telling us about the content of a
9 writing.
10 A Absolutely not. |'mlooking at the punctuation at the

11 end; it's handwitten at the end of words.

12 Q And what training did you receive in determ ning whet her
13 punctuation can assist you in making one of the determ nations
14 that you nmake in your job?

15 A It's a knowmn --

16 Q And let ne finish. |In your job as a forensic docunent

17 exam ner.

18 A Look at punctuation constantly, on a daily basis.
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Sonetimes, punctuation is significant; sonetinmes, it's not. In
this particular case, it's highly significant.

Q How do you determ ne whether it's significant or not
significant?

A Based on experience and training.

Q I woul d assune that there is no published testing on this

thesis; would I be right about that?
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A Not that |'m aware of.

Q I could go on for a little longer, but I would assunme you
can probably agree with me | can find a lot nore tines when the
feature you found inportant on the questioned docunent is not
found on the known docunments, and |'m assum ng your answer
would be it's a variation, a normal variation?

A Yes.

Q kay. So to save a lot of time, would you agree with ne
that | could find probably a | ot nore exanples of what we have
just gone through?

A Certainly.

Q Okay. You mentioned to us when you were tal king about
some of the associations of which you' re a nenber that one of
them the American Board of Forensic Docunent Exam ners,

actually certifies practitioners by adm nistering some testing?
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A Yes. | guess you could call it certification. | nean, it

is certification, yes.

Q You kind of rolled your eyes. | nean, is there
sonet hing --
A | didn't roll my eyes. Yes, it is certification of the

conpetency of an individual that they neet the standards as set
by the Board.

Q When did you take those certification tests?

A In 1984.

Q Do you have --
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A Well, prior to 1984.
Q Okay. Do you have any recollection of whether or not the
five tests you took to be Board-certified had anything to do
with printing?
A | don't recall
Q kay.

MR KISH: Okay. |If | could just have one noment,
Judge?

(Pause in the proceedings.)
MR, KISH: Judge, | think that's it. Thank you very

nmuch.
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THE COURT: Al right. M. Vineyard, any redirect?

M. Kish, she will hand you the other exhibits, the
ot her docunents.

MR KISH: Yes, ma' am

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VI NEYARD:
Q M. Anthony, you testified about an assunption; do you
recall that on cross-exam nation?
A Yes.
Q And were you referring to the inpossibility of testing
every individual's handwiting?
A Yes.
Q You are familiar that sone testing has been done?

A. Yes, |'m aware of that.
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Q And you' ve already testified about that?

A Yes.

Q Sir, were there any other questions asked of you on
cross-exam nation for which you did not get to fully answer or
correct anything?

A | don't believe so.

Q And the various exanples that M. Kish went over with you

interns of variations in letter formati ons between the A and
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the N, those were things that you noted and considered in
reachi ng your opinion; is that right?
A Absol utely.
Q And had you found sufficient nunbers of differences, you
woul d have not reached your opinion that M. LeCroy was the
aut hor of the docunents?

MR, KISH: Judge, | would like to object to the
| eadi ng formof the question in redirect exam nation, Your
Honor .

MR, VINEYARD: [|'Ill rephrase it, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR VI NEYARD:
Q Sir, had your opinions been different, would you have
concl uded that the variations pointed out to you were

significant?

A Yes.
THE COURT: Any recross?
DONNA C. KEEBLE, O ficial Court Reporter
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MR. KISH: No nore questions.
THE COURT: Al right. M. Anthony, you may step
down.

MR. VI NEYARD: My he be excused, Your Honor?
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THE COURT: Yes.

Does that conclude the evidence for today?

MR VI NEYARD: Yes.

THE COURT: 10:00 o'clock tonorrow?

MR VI NEYARD: That's fine, Your Honor

MR, KISH. Fine, Judge.

(Proceedi ngs adjourned, to reconmence as ordered by the

Court.)
* * * * * *
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